
 
 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 

Northern Area Planning 
Committee 

 
 
Date: 
 

Thursday 14 July 2022 

Time: 
 

5.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Conference Room 1, Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, Andover, 
Hampshire, SP10 3AJ 
 

 
 
For further information or enquiries please contact: 
Sally Prior - 01264 368024 
sprior@testvalley.gov.uk 
 

Legal and Democratic Service 
Test Valley Borough Council, 

Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, 
Andover, Hampshire, 

SP10 3AJ 
www.testvalley.gov.uk 

 

 

The recommendations contained in the Agenda are made by the Officer and these 

recommendations may or may not be accepted by the Committee. 

 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME 

If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the 
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon 

on the working day before the meeting. 

 

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/


 
 

 
Membership of Northern Area Planning Committee 

 

MEMBER  WARD 

 

Councillor J Budzynski (Chairman) Andover St Mary's 

Councillor T Burley (Vice-Chairman) Andover Harroway 

Councillor C Borg-Neal Andover Harroway 

Councillor Z Brooks Andover Millway 

Councillor D Coole Anna 

Councillor C Ecclestone Andover Millway 

Councillor V Harber Andover St Mary's 

Councillor L Lashbrook Charlton & the Pentons 

Councillor P Lashbrook Bellinger 

Councillor N Lodge Andover Downlands 

Councillor J Neal Andover Millway 

Councillor K North Andover Romans 

Councillor R Rowles Andover Winton 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022



 
 

 
Northern Area Planning Committee 

 
Thursday 14 July 2022 

 
AGENDA 

 
The order of these items may change as a result of members 

of the public wishing to speak 
 

1   Apologies 
 

 

2   Public Participation 
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

4   Urgent Items 
 

 

5   Minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2022 
 

 

6   Information Notes 
 

5 - 10 

7   TPO.TVBC.1239 - 11.02.2022 
 

11 - 20 

 OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: CONFIRMATION 
Simply Health, Alan Child House, Borden Gates, Andover, 
SP10 2RT, ANDOVER TOWN (WINTON) 
CASE OFFICER: Mark Wadey 
 

 

8   21/01749/FULLN - 09.06.2021 
 

21 - 55 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: Meadow Solar Farm, Land to the South East of 
Perham Down, SP11 8PQ, THRUXTON / SHIPTON 
BELLINGER / APPLESHAW / FYFIELD / KIMPTON  
CASE OFFICER: Samantha Owen 
 

 

9   22/00833/FULLN - 24.03.2022 
 

56 - 76 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: Williams Garage, Salisbury Road, Andover, SP11 
7NX,  ABBOTTS ANN 
CASE OFFICER: Samantha Owen 
 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022



 
 

10   22/01147/FULLN - 26.04.2022 
 

77 - 86 

 (OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION) 
SITE: Land North East of Homelea, Andover Road,  
ABBOTTS ANN / MONXTON 
CASE OFFICER: Lucy Bensaid 
 

 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022



 

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

INFORMATION NOTES 
 
 

Availability of Background Papers 
 
Background papers may be inspected up to five working days before the date of the 
Committee meeting and for four years thereafter.  Requests to inspect the 
background papers, most of which will be on the application file, should be made to 
the case officer named in the report or to the Development Manager.  Although there 
is no legal provision for inspection of the application file before the report is placed 
on the agenda for the meeting, an earlier inspection may be agreed on application to 
the Head of Planning and Building. 
 
Reasons for Committee Consideration 
 
The majority of applications are determined by the Head of Planning and Building in 
accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation which is set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.  However, some applications are determined at the Area Planning 
Committees and this will happen if any of the following reasons apply: 
 

(a) Applications which are contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft 
development plan or other statement of approved planning policy where 
adverse representations have been received and which is recommended 
for approval. 
 

(b) Applications (excluding notifications) where a Member requests in writing, 
with reasons and within the Application Publicity Expiry Date, that they be 
submitted to Committee. A Member can withdraw this request at any time 
prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination under 
delegated powers. 

 
(c) Applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council, or any company in 

which the Council holds an interest, for its own developments except for the 
approval of minor developments. 
 

(d) Applications where the Head of Planning and Building Services recommends 
refusal of an application solely on the basis of failure to achieve nutrient 
neutrality where a Ward Member requests in writing, with reasons, within 72 
hours of notification of the recommendation for refusal that they be submitted 
to Committee for determination. A Member can withdraw this request at any 
time prior to the determination of the application to enable its determination 
under delegated powers. 

 
(e) To determine applications (excluding applications for advertisement consent, 

certificates of lawfulness, listed building consent, and applications resulting 
from the withdrawal by condition of domestic permitted development rights; 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 5

ITEM 6



 

 

 
Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes B, C, D, E, F, G, and H of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or as 
amended) on which a material planning objection(s) has been received within 
the Application Publicity Expiry Date and which cannot be resolved by 
negotiation or through the imposition of conditions and where the officer’s 
recommendation is for approval, following consultation with the Ward 
Members, the latter having the right to request that the application be 
reported to Committee for decision. 

 
Public Speaking at the Meeting 
 
The Council has a public participation scheme, which invites members of the public, 
Parish Council representatives and applicants to address the Committee on 
applications.  Full details of the scheme are available from Planning and Building 
Services or from Democratic Services at the Council Offices, Beech Hurst, Weyhill 
Road, Andover.  Copies are usually sent to all those who have made 
representations.  Anyone wishing to speak must book with the Democratic Services 
within the stipulated time period otherwise they will not be allowed to address the 
Committee. 
 
Speakers are limited to a total of three minutes per item for Councillors on the Area 
Committee who have personal interests or where a Member has pre-determined 
his/her position on the relevant application, three minutes for the Parish Council, 
three minutes for all objectors, three minutes for all supporters and three minutes for 
the applicant/agent and relevant Ward Members who are not Committee Members 
will have a maximum of five minutes.  Where there are multiple supporters or 
multiple objectors wishing to speak the Chairman may limit individual speakers to 
less than three minutes with a view to accommodating multiple speakers within the 
three minute time limit.  Speakers may be asked questions by the Members of the 
Committee, but are not permitted to ask questions of others or to join in the debate.  
Speakers are not permitted to circulate or display plans, photographs, illustrations or 
textual material during the Committee meeting as any such material should be sent 
to the Members and officers in advance of the meeting to allow them time to 
consider the content. 
 
Content of Officer’s Report 
 
It should be noted that the Officer’s report will endeavour to include a summary of the 
relevant site characteristics, site history, policy issues, consultations carried out with 
both internal and external consultees and the public and then seek to make a 
professional judgement as to whether permission should be granted.  However, the 
officer’s report will usually summarise many of the issues, particularly consultations 
received from consultees and the public, and anyone wishing to see the full 
response must ask to consult the application file. 
 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 6



 

 
Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions 
 
The recommendations contained in this report are made by the officers at the time 
the report was prepared.  A different recommendation may be made at the meeting 
should circumstances change and the officer’s recommendations may not be 
accepted by the Committee. 
 
In order to facilitate debate in relation to an application, the Chairman will move the 
officer’s recommendations in the report, which will be seconded by the Vice 
Chairman.  Motions are debated by the Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Rules of Procedure.  A binding decision is made only when the Committee has 
formally considered and voted in favour of a motion in relation to the application and, 
pursuant to that resolution, the decision notice has subsequently been issued by the 
Council. 
 
Conditions and Reasons for Refusal 
 
Suggested reasons for refusal and any conditions are set out in full in the officer’s 
recommendation. 
 
Officers or the Committee may add further reasons for refusal or conditions during 
the Committee meeting and Members may choose to refuse an application 
recommended for permission by the Officers or to permit an application 
recommended for refusal.  In all cases, clear reasons will be given, by whoever is 
promoting the new condition or reason for refusal, to explain why the change is being 
made. 
 
Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation 
 
For some applications, a resolution is passed to grant planning permission subject to 
the completion of an appropriate planning obligation (often referred to as a Section 
106 agreement).  The obligation can restrict development or the use of the land, 
require operations or activities to be carried out, require the land to be used in a 
specified way or require payments to be made to the authority. 
 
New developments will usually be required to contribute towards the infrastructure 
required to serve a site and to cater for additional demand created by any new 
development and its future occupants.  Typically, such requirements include 
contributions to community facilities, village halls, parks and play areas, playing 
fields and improvements to roads, footpaths, cycleways and public transport. 
 
Upon completion of the obligation, the Head of Planning and Building is delegated to 
grant permission subject to the listed conditions.  However, it should be noted that 
the obligation usually has to be completed sufficiently in advance of the planning 
application determination date to allow the application to be issued.  If this does not 
happen, the application may be refused for not resolving the issues required within 
the timescale set to deal with the application. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 7



 

Deferred Applications 
 
Applications may not be decided at the meeting for a number of reasons as follows: 
 
* The applicant may choose to withdraw the application.  No further action 

would be taken on that proposal and the file is closed. 
 
* Officers may recommend deferral because the information requested or 

amended plans have not been approved or there is insufficient time for 
consultation on amendments. 

 
* The Committee may resolve to seek additional information or amendments. 
 
* The Committee may resolve to visit the site to assess the effect of the 

proposal on matters that are not clear from the plans or from the report.  
These site visits are not public meetings. 

 
Visual Display of Plans and Photographs 
 
Plans are included in the officers’ reports in order to identify the site and its 
surroundings.  The location plan will normally be the most up-to-date available from 
Ordnance Survey and to scale.  The other plans are not a complete copy of the 
application plans and may not be to scale, particularly when they have been reduced 
from large size paper plans.  If further information is needed or these plans are 
unclear please refer to the submitted application on the Council’s website.  Plans 
displayed at the meeting to assist the Members may include material additional to 
the written reports. 
 
Photographs are used to illustrate particular points on most of the items and the 
officers usually take these.  Photographs submitted in advance by applicants or 
objectors may be used at the discretion of the officers. 
 
Human Rights 
 
The European Convention on Human Rights” (“ECHR”) was brought into English 
Law, via the Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”), as from October 2000. 
 
The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR. 
 
There are 2 Convention Rights likely to be most relevant to Planning Decisions: 
 
* Article 1 of the 1st Protocol - The Right to the Enjoyment of Property. 
 
* Article 8 - Right for Respect for Home, Privacy and Family Life. 
 
It is important to note that these types of right are not unlimited - although in 
accordance with the EU concept of “proportionality”, any interference with these 
rights must be sanctioned by Law (e.g. by the Town & Country Planning Acts) and 
must go no further than necessary. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 8



 

Essentially, private interests must be weighed against the wider public interest and 
against competing private interests.  Such a balancing exercise is already implicit in 
the decision making processes of the Committee.  However, Members must 
specifically bear Human Rights issues in mind when reaching decisions on all 
planning applications and enforcement action. 
 
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC) 
 
The Council has a duty under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 
2006 as follows: "every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, 
so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of 
conserving biodiversity". 
 
It is considered that this duty has been properly addressed within the process 
leading up to the formulation of the policies in the Revised Local Plan.  Further 
regard is had in relation to specific planning applications through completion of the 
biodiversity checklists for validation, scoping and/or submission of Environmental 
Statements and any statutory consultations with relevant conservation bodies on 
biodiversity aspects of the proposals.  Provided any recommendations arising from 
these processes are conditioned as part of any grant of planning permission (or 
included in reasons for refusal of any planning application) then the duty to ensure 
that biodiversity interest has been conserved, as far as practically possible, will be 
considered to have been met. 
 
Other Legislation 

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
determination of applications be made in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The Development Plan for the 
Borough comprises the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016), and ‘made’ 
Neighbourhood Plans.  Material considerations are defined by Case Law and 
includes, amongst other things, draft Development Plan Documents (DPD), 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and other relevant guidance including 
Development Briefs, Government advice, amenity considerations, crime and 
community safety, traffic generation and safety. 

On the 19th February 2019 the Government published a revised National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF). The revised NPPF replaced and superseded the previous 
NPPF published in  2018.  The revised NPPF is a material consideration in planning 
decisions.   

So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 
revised NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Decisions 
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  This does not 
change the statutory status of the development plan as a starting point for decision 
making.  Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  Where a planning application conflicts with an up to date 
development plan, permission should not usually be granted.  Local planning 
authorities may take decisions which depart from an up to date development plan, 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 9



 

but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should 
not be followed.   

For decision-taking, applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
means: 
 

 Approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development 
plan without delay; or 

 Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which 
are most important for determining the application are out of date, granting 
permission unless: 
o The application of policies in the revised NPPF that protect areas or assets 

of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed; or  

o Any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the revised 
NPPF when taken as a whole.   

Existing Local Plan policies should not be considered out of date because they were 
adopted prior to the publication of the revised NPPF.  Due weight should be given to 
them, according to their degree of consistency with the revised NPPF (the closer the 
policies in the Local Plan to the policies in the revised NPPF, the greater the weight 
that may be given).   

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 APPLICATION NO. TPO.TVBC.1239 
 SUBJECT TYPE TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 
 SITE Simply Health, Alan Child House, Borden Gates, 

Andover, SP10 2RT, ANDOVER TOWN (WINTON) 
 ORDER MADE 11.02.2022 
 CASE OFFICER Mark Wadey 
   
 Background paper  
 Appendix: TPO.TVBC.1239 (provisional order) 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
1.1 This matter is reported to the Northern Area Planning Committee to consider 

objections received in respect to the making of a new Tree Preservation Order 
(TPO) and decide whether the TPO should be confirmed.  
 

1.2 A provisional Tree Preservation Order (TPO.TVBC.1239) was made in response 
to a pre-planning application for the erection of 65 retirement apartments at Alan 
Child House in Andover.  This TPO protects one individual Ash tree (T1), four 
Ash forming a linear group (G1) and a linear group of four Birch (G2). 
 

1.3 Objections to this provisional TPO have been received. 
 

1.4 The Council cannot confirm a TPO unless it first considers objections and 
representations duly made and not withdrawn. If a TPO is confirmed, it may be 
confirmed with or without modifications. 

 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The site is located close to the centre of Andover adjacent to the entrance of 

Borden Gates, between Western Avenue (A3057) to the south and Bridge 
Street to the north.  It consists of a large office building block surrounded by 
hard surfacing and landscaped areas around the boundaries containing low 
shrubbery vegetation, hedging and trees.  
 

2.2 The trees within the site can be broken down into two distinctive groups and one 
individual tree; 
 
Tree Groups 
Group shown as G1 – within the TPO schedule.  This group stands on the north 
south eastern side of the site and contains 4 maturing Ash trees set within the 
existing car park area.  
 
Group shown as G2 – within the TPO schedule.  This group stands on the north 
western corner of the site and contains 4 maturing Birch trees set within the 
existing car park area, adjacent to the public footpath. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 11

ITEM 7



Individual tree – Tree shown as T1 within the TPO schedule. This Ash tree 
stands on the south eastern corner of the site, adjacent to the public footpath 
and A3057 flyover. 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND 
3.1 The area subject to the TPO.TVBC.1239 is part of a pre-application planning 

submission for the redevelopment of retirement housing which will require the 
loss of several trees within the site to accommodate the current proposals.  For 
this reason, a TPO was considered expedient as there is now a perceived threat 
that trees of significant landscape importance could be felled without the 
appropriate protection being in place. 

 
4.0 REPRESENTATIONS  
 Correspondence has been received from Barrell Treecare on behalf of their 

client Planning Issues Ltd, objecting to the making of the TPO on the following 
grounds: 
 
TPO ref T1 Raywood Ash (Fraxinus oxycarpa ‘Raywood’): Whilst this tree is 
visible from the adjacent riverside footpath, flyover and car park, and therefore 
has a degree of public benefit, it has limited potential to grow much bigger due 
to it’s restricted root volume. It is already interfering with the flyover structure 
and will need regular management to restrict conflict in the future.  

TPO ref G1 4no. Raywood Ash (F. oxycarpa ‘Raywood’): These four trees 
form a linear group within a narrow planting bed, completely surrounded by hard 
surfacing. They are sparse trees, with thinning crowns and are of low vigour. 
These trees could be replaced elsewhere on the site, on the western boundary 
with the car park would be ideal, with new specimen trees of higher quality, and 
are not worthy of a TPO.  

TPO ref G2 4no Birch (Betula pendula): This linear group along the northern 
boundary of the site comprises two moderate quality trees at either end, with 
two very poor suppressed trees in the middle. They are all significantly restricted 
in terms of root volume by the adjacent boundary wall, and hard surfacing. The 
two central trees are certainly not worthy of a TPO.  
 
In view of all these points, modification of the TPO is formally requested as 
follows:  

 Omission of G1  

 Omission of the two central trees in G2, and modification to two individual 
trees.  

 
5.0 POLICY 
5.1 POLICY AND NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 
 
The Local Planning Authority may make a TPO if it appears to them to be: 
‘expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of 
trees and woodlands in their area’.  TPOs should be used to protect selected 
trees and woodlands if their removal would have a significant impact on the 
local environment and its enjoyment by the public. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 12



5.2 Legislation governing Tree Preservation Orders and tree protection in 
conservation areas 
 
Guidance is also taken from the current 2014 legislation governing Tree 
Preservation Orders and tree protection in conservation areas. 

 
6.0 TPO CONSIDERATIONS 
6.1 In assessing trees for possible inclusion in a new TPO, the Council therefore 

assesses whether the trees in question have public amenity value.  Before 
doing so, however, it first determines, by reference to a list of detractions, 
whether the making of a new order would be defensible. 
 

6.2 Further to the points raised by the objector, the following response is provided 
for the Committee’s consideration: 
 
TPO ref T1 Ash:  Officer’s observations found this tree to be in good health 
generally, growing vigorously in its surroundings.  Much of the root system is 
covered by hard surfacing but the tree is clearly adapting well to its 
surroundings.  Some pruning management may be required in the future to 
maintain clearance over the nearby flyover, but this can be easily achieved 
without the need to prune large limbs or significantly alter the tree’s current 
aesthetic value.  There are no visible indications to suggest that it is in decline, 
and it is considered to have good future potential as an amenity feature for 
many years to come.  No objection has been raised for its inclusion within the 
TPO, so it is recommended the Order should be confirmed without amendment. 
 
TPO ref G1 4 x Ash:  This group of trees is also visible from several public 
places surrounding the site and it clearly offers some valued screening in front 
of Alan Child House when viewed from Western Avenue (flyover).  Although the 
site is not in a Conservation Area, this group offers important canopy cover in a 
heavily urbanised environment, not very well endowed with trees.  These trees 
are growing in a narrow planting bed, but they are already well established with 
potential to continue as important future amenity features.  From the Officer’s 
observations, there are no signs to suggest the trees are in decline or currently 
suffering from Ash-dieback disease.  
 
TPO ref G2 4 x Birch:  These trees are also surrounded by hard surfacing and 
a wall on one side.  However, there are no signs of structural damage to the 
wall, so it is possible that roots are growing deeply in the underlying soil beneath 
the surfacing.  The two end trees have become more dominant than the two 
middle trees but there are no obvious signs of significant health problems or 
decline.  These trees have developed more slowly than the adjacent trees, but 
they are integral to the overall group feature.  Collectively, they provide valued 
landscape cover when viewed from the public access routes between Borden 
Gates and Bridge Street.   
 
Following current guidance and legislation governing the making of tree 
preservation orders, the Officer maintains that the group category is more 
appropriate than the alternative individual category requested by the objector.  
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 13



6.3 The trees can be seen from public vantage points – views of the individual tree 
and groups may be achieved from the following public locations: 
• Borden Gates. 
• Westbrook Close 
• Public footpath crossing the A3057 (Western Road) flyover   
• Public footpath running north to south alongside the eastern river 

boundary linking Bridge Street with the Asda superstore 
 
7.0 CONCLUSION 
7.1 No objection has been raised for the inclusion of T1 (Ash), so in this respect, the 

Officer concludes that no amendment to the TPO is required.  
 
Groups 1 and 2 have some restrictions to root growth but the Officer concludes 
that they are generally in good health with potential to contribute well to the 
future amenity of the area. The group designations are considered appropriate 
for the purpose of protecting the important tree features on this site and it is 
entirely reasonable that the Order is confirmed without amendment.  

 
8.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 That TPO.TVBC.1239 is confirmed without modification. 

 
 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 14



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 15



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 16



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 17



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 18



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 19



G2

T1

BRID
GE STREET

Police Station

Car Park

R
iv

e
r 

A
n

to
n

M
e
th

o
d

is
t

Elim Church

C
h

u
rc

h

W
IN

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
O

U
T
H

 S
T
R

E
E

T

WESTBROOKE CLOSE

WESTERN AVENUE

BORDEN GATES

57.0m

W
e
s

s
e
x

 C
h

a
m

b
e
rs

Car

Chambers

Alan Child House

A
n

to
n

 H
o
u
s
e

Army

Park

Prospect
Court

Citadel

Crown

Hotel

27 29

55 57

22 to
 30

CR

49

40

T
h

e
 M

a
ll

25

42

Def

8
5

Ward Bdy

6
8

36

53

35

El Sub Sta

6a

38

Shelter

Centre

33

8
0

34

32

7
9

13a

1 to 5

1 to 7

Office

15

13

16

FB

18

19

6

1
2

8

Ps

2

7

41

31

51

El Sub Sta

Car Park

Car Park

57.0m

El Sub Sta

1
6

G1

Salvation

43 to
 47

Tenpin Bowling

Sorting

Southampton Arms

The Star And Garter1

1 to 11

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING

 WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF

 HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT. 

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

N
Siteplan

TPO.TVBC.1239

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 20



 
 
 

 
 APPLICATION NO. 21/01749/FULLN 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - NORTH 
 REGISTERED 09.06.2021 
 APPLICANT Low Carbon UK Solar Investment Company Ltd 
 SITE Meadow Solar Farm, Land to the South East of 

Perham Down, SP11 8PQ, THRUXTON / SHIPTON 
BELLINGER / APPLESHAW / FYFIELD / KIMPTON  

 PROPOSAL Construction and operation of a solar photovoltaic 
farm, battery storage and associated infrastructure, 
including inverters, batteries, substation compound, 
mast , security cameras, fencing, access tracks and 
landscaping 

 AMENDMENTS Alternative site assessment – 28.06.2021 
Amended Stone Curlew Survey, Cultural Heritage 
Assessment, Design and Access Statement and LVIA 
and additional covering letter  - 18.08.2021 
Amended and Additional Geophysical Report  - 
30.09.2021 
Additional Transport Statement and Response to 
Highways – 05.10.2021 
Swept Path Analysis – 05.11.2021 
Amended Development Zone Plan, Location plan, Site 
Layout Plan – 05.11.2021 
Amended Transport Statement – 08.11.2021 
Additional Habitat Survey 10/12.11.2021 

 CASE OFFICER Samantha Owen 
  

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
Link to Planning Application Documents  

 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
1.1 This application was deferred at the Northern Area Planning Committee of the 

23rd June 2022 to allow for a site viewing by Members to take place. 
 

1.2 The application is presented to Northern Area Planning Committee at the 
request of a member. 

 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The site is located to the south of Perham Down and covers an area of 80 

hectares across four distinct parcels.  The site is currently under arable 
production.  There are pockets of ancient woodland adjacent to the site and a 
footpath network that passes around and through the site.  The site is bounded 
by a mix of hedges and some open boundaries.  To the north of the site is the 
road between Great Shoddesden and Tidworth.  
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 21

ITEM 8

https://view-applications.testvalley.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=makeComment&keyVal=QUFW77QCML300


 
 
2.2 The site lies within a network of footpaths that link with Wiltshire’s footpath 

network.  A track known as Cow Lane which has public access across it divides 
the northern parcel of the site.  Restricted Byway Kimpton 16 passes across the 
site in an east/west orientation.  Public Footpath Kimpton 3 is located along the 
southern and part of the eastern boundary of the site.   
 

2.3 Kimpton Conservation Area is located within a mile of the site to the east.  There 
are no listed buildings within close proximity to the site with those located within 
the Kimpton Conservation Area being the nearest. 

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 The application seeks full planning permission for a 75 hectare solar farm with 

an output of 49.9 megawatts that would power approximately 16,581 homes.  
The solar farm is proposed to be operational for 40 years. 
 

3.2 The panels would be sited between 0.9m and 3m above the ground level. The 
racking would be positioned at an angle relative to the ground of 29.5 degrees 
with an anticipated gap of 3.2 metres between rows of the proposed panels. 
 

3.3 The solar farm would also incorporate a number of ancillary structures as 
follows: 

 18 Inverters measuring 12.2 metres long, 3 metres deep and 2.9 metres 
high 

 Switchgear/Control room measuring 12.5 metres long, 5.5 metres wide 
and 6 metres high 

 Network Operator Control Room measuring 8 metres wide, 6 metres long 
and 4.1 metres high 

 Customer Control Room measuring 10 metres long, 3 metres high and 4 
metres wide. 

 A Communications mast which would be of a lattice construction of 15-20 
metres high. 

 CCTV cameras to a height of approximately 2 metres at approximate 
intervals of 50 metres along the boundary line of the solar farm. 

 The site has the capacity for 8 battery containers measuring 2.6m wide, 
2.9 metres high and 12 metres long. 

The substation would be 50 metres by 50 metres approximately with all 
structures constructed on a concrete base.  Vehicle access to the substation 
would be from the road between Tidworth and Great Shoddesden to the north of 
the site, with an internal access track along the western boundary of the site.  
The whole site would be enclosed by a 2m high wooden post and metal wire 
deer fence. 

 
4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 21/00744/SCRN - Screening opinion under the Environment Impact 

Assessment Regulations 2017 - Proposed solar farm with battery storage and 
associated infrastructure – EIA not required.31.03.2021. 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 22



 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Natural England - No Objection 

NE recommends that the application is supported by a Biodiversity Mitigation 
and Enhancement Plan which should be agreed by the Council’s Ecologist. 
NE have raised no objection to the Appropriate Assessment in respect of the 
Stone Curlews provided mitigation is secured.NE have raised concerns about 
the use of Best and Most Versatile land to accommodate the solar array. 
 
Recommend a Decommissioning Plan. 
 

5.2 HCC Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) 

 Applicants have submitted an FRA advising the site is in FZ1 

 They have acknowledged that the site sits on chalk. 

 No infiltration tests have been carried out on site 

 Solar array is a low risk development 

 The Applicant is proposing Swales along the sites boundary 

 Sufficient storage capacity within proposed Swales to contain the 
1:100+ climate change value 

 Suggest Condition 
 

5.3 Archaeology - No Objection 
Condition to secure the Mitigation Strategy recommended. 
 

5.4 Landscape – Comment 
The amended landscaping scheme looks to increase many of the perimeter 
buffers as well as incorporating new woodland belts which helps to address 
many of the key concerns which were highlighted in the previous landscape 
response. Due to site constraints, it is not possible to address all aspects 
which were highlighted, in the cases where this wasn’t possible, the application 
has provided reasonable justification. 
 
Due to the size and scale of the proposals the development would never be 
able to be fully mitigated. 
  

5.5 Planting details and a robust management plan will be required, these have 
been submitted but require some further work so a condition is recommended. 
 

5.6 Ecology – Comment 
RSPB has agreed mitigation measures to address impact on stone curlews 
with the applicant regarding this species.  Skylark plots are also proposed. This 
will be agreed through a S106. 
 
The Ecologist also recommends Conditions re the following: 

 Location of mammal gates 

 Lighting 

 Construction Traffic Management Plan (CEMP) 

 Biodiversity Enhancement plan 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 23



5.7 Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB) 

 RSPB guidance requires three years of targeted surveys to confirm 
habitats on site do/do not support stone curlew 

 Only one year provided 

 In lieu of three years’ worth of survey RSPB have agreed a stone curlew 
plot in the vicinity of the solar farm to provide acceptable habitat 

 On-going maintenance needs to be secured 
 

5.8 Highways – No objection  
The following conditions are suggested; 
 
Construction Environmental Management Plan 
Access provision 
Hard Surface Materials 
Surface Water Details 
 

5.9 Design and Conservation – No objection 
Due to the topography of the area and the existing established tree belts and 
other vegetation, it is unlikely there will be direct views of the proposed solar 
farm from any of the designated heritage assets in the vicinity.  
 
Glimpsed, distance views may be possible in some places but these should be 
unlikely to cause sufficient effect on the assets’ settings that there would be 
harm to their significance.  
 
The Heritage Assessment is light on photographs/ other pictorial evidence to 
demonstrate the settings of any assets.  However as was advised in previous 
comments it seems unlikely that the solar farm would adversely affect the 
settings of any nearby assets. 
 

5.10 HCC Rights of Way – Comment 
Footpaths that are present are kept on their original routes.  Support Andover 
Ramblers in seeking mitigation through a new route.  Suggest conditions and 
informatives. 
 

5.11 Andover Ramblers – Comment    

 The Design and Access Statement mentions the Public Rights of Way 
but does not mention the Other Route with Public Access (Cow Lane). 

 Plan confirms all routes will remain on current routes. 

 It is important that there is an open space meadow buffer zone between 
the routes and the solar panels or any new fencing/hedging proposed. 

 Any new hedging should be at least 5 metres either side of the path and 
any reduction should be approved on an individual basis. 

 There will be significant loss of views especially form Restricted Byway 
16. 

 Should be some recompense for this loss and the walk through a quasi-
industrial landscape. 

 Andover Ramblers propose that an addition to the PROW network 
should be formally recognised to link Cow Lane and the restricted 
byway, this could be done without any serious impact to the solar array. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 24



 Alternatively a new path along southern fence of the new sola array. 
 

5.12 Environmental Protection - No objection  
Conditions suggested in relation to Noise from external plant and Method of 
construction (dust and noise). 
 

5.13 MOD – No objection 
 

5.14 Wiltshire County Council (Highways) – No objection subject to securing the 
routing of construction traffic. 
 

5.15 Wiltshire County Council (Landscape) - No objection.  
Subject to a strong planting belt along part of the western boundary of the 
southern section. 
 

5.16 DEFRA – No response 
 
6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 12.07.2021 
6.1 Kimpton Parish Council: Objection 

 Supportive of solar power 

 Solar farm would be located in unspoilt area and should not be spoiled 
by a solar plant of such a large size 

 Solar Farm will reduce areas for wildlife to roam. 

 Solar farm will result in the loss of farmland – solar farms could be built 
on brownfield sites. 

 Number of solar farms in area which will spoil area. 

 40 year life is stretching the envelope of plant and component as well as 
management experience. 

 Enjoyment of using the footpath network will be reduced. 
 

6.2 Thruxton Parish Council: No objection 
 

6.3 Shipton Bellinger Parish Council: No response 
 

6.4 Fyfield Parish Council: No response 
 

6.5 Appleshaw Parish Council: No response 
 

6.6 14 letters of representation:  Manor Bridge Court, Tidworth; 27 Sheppard 
Street, Tidworth; Touch Down, Cow Lane, Kimpton; Barn House, Kimpton 
Lane, Kimpton; Kimpton Wood House, Down Road, Kimpton; 6 Deacon Road, 
Kimpton; 25 Fyfield Way, Perham Down; Ladysfield, Wiremead lane, 
E.Cholderton; Rosslyn Cottage, Biddesden Bottom Road, Redenham; The 
Pumphouse, 5 The green Kimpton; Kimpton Cottage, Kimpton; Unknown 
address, Cow Lane; Fleetwood, Cow Lane, Kimpton; Unknown address. 

  Neutral on application 

 Disappointed all construction traffic through Tidworth utilising Station 
Road which is a 20mph zone 

 Could vehicles not use Somme Road using new link and improved A338 

 Access to Cow Lane should be kept accessible through construction 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 25



  Development will change land use, no provisions to return the land to 
greenfield after 40 years making land vulnerable to other development. 

 No indication of end of life considerations like battery spillage making it 
less likely that it will be returned to greenfield 

 Language used in the application is vague 

 Immature copse at top left of Cow lane this should be left out of solar 
array 

 Wildlife should be allowed to move freely as it does at present. 

 Area of stunning beauty that many people enjoy, numerous brownfield 
sites that could be used locally in Andover/Ludgershall 

 Screening should be at least 3 metres in height 

 Views from local footpaths will be ruined 

 Developers have indicated that they will mitigate impact by planting, bee 
hives, sheep etc., appears they acknowledge proposal is not in keeping 
with area. 

  Solar panels along A303 have less of a visual impact. 

 Why can panels not be placed in already industrial area or on roofs. 

 Must be another place solar panels can be erected without absorbing 
farm land 

  Will impact views from my property (Kimpton Wood House) 

 Solar Farm will be visible from Warren Hill and will be a blot on the 
landscape, hardly a legacy to pass to future generations 

 Thruxton Aerodrome – No objection 
 
7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

Climate Change Act 2008, National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), National Policy Statement for 
Energy Infrastructure (NPS). 
 

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(TVBRLP) 
SD1 – Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development 
E1 – High Quality Development in the Borough 
E2 – Protect, Conserve and Enhance the Landscape Character of the Borough 
E5 – Biodiversity 
E7 – Water Management 
E8 – Pollution 
E9 - Heritage 
LHW4 – Amenity 
T1 – Managing Movement 
T2 – Parking Standards 
 

7.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) 
Test Valley Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Study 

 
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
8.1 The main planning considerations are: 

 Principle of Development 

 Use of agricultural land 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 26



 Landscape and Visual Impacts 

 Highway Impacts and Access 

 Biodiversity 

 Heritage 

 Surface Water Run Off 

 Residential Amenity 

 Glint and Glare 

 Construction Issues 

 Other Matters 
 

8.2 Principle of Development. 
Planning applications should be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
TVBRLP was adopted in January 2016. There are no specific policies within 
the plan relating to renewable energy. 
 
Policy SD1 of the TVBRLP has a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  It states that where there are no policies relevant to the 
application the Council will grant planning permission unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise – taking into account whether; 
 

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies 
of the NPPF taken as a whole or; 

b) Specific policies within that Framework indicate that development 
should be restricted. 

 
8.3 The site is located within the countryside as defined by Policy COM2 of the 

TVBRLP where development is allowed if it is appropriate within the 
countryside as set out in relevant policies or it is essential for it to be located 
within the countryside.  The relevant policies set out in policy COM2 do not 
cover the creation of solar farms.  Consideration therefore needs to be given to 
whether it is essential for the proposal to be located in the countryside and 
whether there are any relevant material considerations. 

 
8.4 The National Policy Statement for Energy (EN-1) sets out how the Government 

is going to reduce its carbon emissions by 2050 as at present the UK is heavily 
reliant on fossil fuels, which has an impact on global climate.  To keep rising 
global temperatures to below 2 degrees there needs to be a move away from 
the use of fossil fuels.  As part of its strategy the Government has set out its 
need for new low carbon energy infrastructure to contribute towards climate 
change mitigation. 
 

8.5 The NPPF (2021) states in paragraph 158 that when determining planning 
applications for renewable and low carbon development local planning 
authorities should not require applicants to demonstrate the overall need for 
renewable or low carbon energy and recognises that even small-scale projects 
provide a valuable contribution and that the application should be approved if 
its impacts are or can be made acceptable. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 27



8.6 Site Selection 
The proposal is for a non-subsidised solar farm covering 80 hectares.  
Sourcing viable sites is dependent on a number of factors including connection 
to grid and the Planning Statement provides information on other sites that 
were considered. With regard to installations on existing buildings the 
applicant’s Alternative Sites Assessment advises that there are no roofs of 
comparable size and utilising multiple roofs is not comparable or realistic when 
considered relative to a ground mounted solar array.  Third party suggestions 
of utilising land adjacent to the A303 is noted but unless that comes forward as 
an alternative and available site consideration needs to be given to the 
proposal as submitted. 
 

8.7 There is no guidance on what should constitute a search area.  The search 
area has therefore been dictated by the need to connect to the grid.  A 132kv 
overhead line runs across the site which the proposed development would 
connect into.  This stretch of overhead line has the necessary capacity and 
infrastructure to accommodate the construction of the solar PV farm of the 
proposed size.  It is considered that connection to this overhead power line 
could theoretically occur within 1km of it and as such the search area has been 
restricted to a 1km corridor on either side of this identified stretch of line.  All 
land that had been allocated for renewable projects or land that had been 
allocated for employment within these areas were considered.  A search on the 
Estates Gazette database was also undertaken and looking at both Wiltshire 
and Test Valley brownfield land registers.  No alternative sites were identified. 
 

8.8 Use of agricultural land. 
Agricultural Land is classified into 5 grades.  Grade 1 is best quality and Grade 
5 is the poorest quality.   The NPPF defines the Best and Most Versatile 
agricultural land as being those in Grades 1, 2 and 3a and that LPA’s should 
recognise the economic benefits of this land and steer significant development 
towards poorer quality land. 
 

8.9 The Agricultural Land Classification Report (ALCR) advises that the site has 
Grades 3a and 3b across it.  The proposed development is a temporary and 
reversible use of the land with no permanent loss of agricultural land.  The 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) on Renewable and Low Carbon 
Energy advises that where possible solar farms should be located on 
previously developed land.  Where a proposal involves greenfield land 
consideration should be given to “Whether (i) the proposed use of any 
agricultural land has been shown to be necessary and poorer quality land has 
been used in preference to higher quality land; and (ii) the proposal allows for 
continued agricultural use where applicable and/or encourages biodiversity 
improvements around arrays.”  An Agricultural Quality Survey (AQS) has been 
submitted with the application and this indicates that the solar array would be 
constructed on Grades 3a and 3b which falls under the category of Best and 
Most Versatile Land.  Information has been submitted within the AQS which 
details the nature of the soil.  The agricultural land is stony and this can be an 
impediment to cultivation and result in greater wear and tear on machinery.  
The land the subject of the application was concluded in the AQS as being 
restricted to late spring and autumn crops.  A number of biodiversity 
enhancements are proposed as part of the application and would be secured 
via condition. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 28



8.10 Alternative sites were considered but many were constrained by connectivity to 
the grid, proximity to heritage assets, better grade agricultural land (Grades 1 
and 2) and landscape designations (North Wessex Downs AONB).  
Accordingly, the 40 year/temporary loss of the ability to farm the land for arable 
purposes is considered acceptable. 
 

8.11 The proposed solar farm would be 75 hectares of land currently in arable 
production.  Consideration has been given to alternative sites within the area 
but none of these are large enough for a viable commercial solar farm and lack 
a viable connection to the grid.  Utilising rooftops of existing buildings is also 
problematic due to the extent of land needed and ownership, deliverability and 
maintenance constraints The agricultural land that is being utilised by the solar 
farms is a mix of Grade 3a and 3b and would be temporarily taken out of 
agricultural use to facilitate the provision of renewable energy.  It is considered 
that it has been shown that to create a viable solar farm it is essential for it to 
be located within the countryside and as such accords with Policy COM2 of the 
TVBRLP. 
 

8.12 Landscape and Visual Impacts 
Policy E2 of the TVBRLP requires development to protect, conserve and 
enhance the landscape of the Borough. The NPPG on Renewable and Low 
Carbon Energy recognises that “The deployment of large-scale solar farms can 
have a negative impact on the rural environment, particularly in undulating 
landscapes. However, the visual impact of a well-planned and well-screened 
solar farm can be properly addressed within the landscape if planned 
sensitively”   Concern has been expressed by third parties regarding the visual 
impact of the proposed solar farm.  A Landscape Visual Impact Assessment 
(LVIA) has been submitted as part of the application and this has assessed the 
impact of the proposed solar farm from numerous viewpoints.  The Landscape 
Officer agrees that the LVIA provides an accurate assessment of the local and 
wider landscape character. 
 

8.13 The area of the application is not subject to any landscape designations.  It is 
characterised by gently undulating farmland with copses of trees set within it.  
Apart from pylons which cross the area there are few man-made structures 
visible.  It is accepted that it is not possible to fully screen the solar array from 
higher ground that surrounds the site or from the footpath network that crosses 
the site.  Instead, consideration has been given to breaking up the view of the 
solar array, substation and other supporting structures where possible in 
longer distance views and when passing in close proximity to the array 
screening in the form of planting blocks and hedges would be used.  The 
Landscape Officer is supportive of this approach. 
 

8.14 It is considered that there are two views that are more contentious than others 
these are Viewpoint 7 which looks across the array from Pickford Hill and 
Viewpoint 5 which passes in close proximity to the solar array and substation. 
An amended LVIA was submitted on the 18th August 2021.  Viewpoint 7 is from 
Pickford Hill which is elevated in relation to surrounding land, it would not be 
possible to mitigate this view in its entirety even after 40 years.  The hedges 
within this view and between Parcels 4 and 5 have been reinforced and whilst 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 29



this would have little impact on screening from Viewpoint 7, it would help 
contain the development and when viewed with the wider landscape would 
help maintain the existing field layout.  From this viewpoint the proposed solar 
array would always be apparent and it is acknowledged that there would be 
harm caused by its presence in the wider landscape. 
 

8.15 Viewpoint 5 would also be afforded views of the solar array, this viewpoint is 
along Kimpton 3 Footpath looking northwards across the southern section of 
Parcel 5.  There is a section of Kimpton 3 Footpath of approximately 450 
metres that would have clear views towards the southern section of Parcel 5.  
The solar array would be set back from the footpath but would be on land that 
rises south to north.  Significant block woodland planting is proposed alongside 
the footpath where there are currently clear views and this would start to have 
an impact form year 1 with the view being partially screened and completely 
screened by year 15.   
 

8.16 Parcel 5 would also be the location of the substation in the south-western 
corner and the location of the 15-20 metre mast. The substation would be a 
square compound area located in the south western corner of Parcel 5. A 
communications mast is proposed adjacent to the substation area.  This would 
measure 1.2m on all elevations and a height of 15-20 metres.  This proposed 
structure is of a lattice construction and would be seen in context with the 
proposed substation and connection to overhead power line.  Kimpton 3 
Footpath would be to the south and would largely be screened from the 
substation by existing trees, although at 15-20 metres the mast would be more 
visible.   There is also a path to the west of the substation and this is located 
within Wiltshire, this is not however a formal public footpath.  The substation 
would be visible from this path for a distance of approximately 100 metres. 
 

8.17 The substation does represent a change in the landscape at this point from 
open fields to an enclosed densely developed area, notwithstanding this it 
would be encountered only from the immediate Kimpton 3 Footpath and the 
proposed and existing planting along this path would screen the majority of the 
substation from this path over time.  The substation would also only be 
encountered for a short period when walking this path and it is considered that 
whilst a change has occurred in the landscape that is harmful this will be 
sufficiently mitigated. 
 

8.18 The proposed solar array would represent a change to the wider landscape but 
it is considered that the proposed mitigation would mitigate the visual impact 
from the majority of the viewpoints and where this is not entirely possible due 
to the change in land levels the screening proposed would soften the views of 
the proposal to an acceptable extent thereby reducing its impact within the 
wider landscape.  Long term management and maintenance arrangements for 
the proposed landscaping would be secure via condition.  The Landscape 
Officer has raised no objection.  It is accepted that the solar array will have a 
less positive impact on the landscape in its first 5-10 years as the mitigation 
planting matures but it is considered that over time the impact will lessen.  The 
exception being views across the solar array from Pickford Hill, it is unlikely 
that these views will be completely mitigated across the life of the solar array 
and this will be harmful and would not positively integrate into the landscape 
character and would not accord with Policy E2.   

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 30



 
 
8.19 Highway Impacts and Access 

Policy T1 of the TVBRLP requires development to not have an adverse impact 
on the function, character and safety of and accessibility to the local and 
strategic highway network or the rights of way network.  The application was 
submitted with a Transport Statement which details how traffic would be 
managed. 
 

8.20 Concern has been expressed by third parties on the construction phase of the 
solar farm.  Their concern has been about accessing the site from the west 
and through Tidworth along roads that are within a 20mph zone.  This concern 
was also expressed by Wiltshire County Council.  An amended Transport 
Statement was submitted on the 5th of October 2021 which changed the 
construction route as it passed through Tidworth, effectively taking it away from 
the 20mph zone.  Wiltshire County Council raised no objection to the revised 
route.   
 

8.21 Access 
Vehicle access to the site would be obtained from the road to the north.  
During construction a temporary internal road would be constructed along part 
of the eastern boundary to allow large lorries required during the construction 
period to be able to egress and access the highway network safely.  There 
would be an area within the site that would allow for lorries to pass and set 
down their loads.  Operational traffic would have a slightly different route, 
 
whilst the same access to the highway would be used the internal operational 
access road would then travel west to the boundary of the site and then south 
towards the substation.  Offset routes to access all parcels would lead off from 
this route. 
 

8.22 Hampshire County Council as Highways Authority have raised no objection to 
the management of traffic through both the construction phase and the 
operational phase, subject to condition in respect of the submission of a 
Construction Method Statement.    
 

8.23 Public Rights of Way (PRoW) 
The site has a number of rights of way that either cross the site or follow the 
boundary of the site.  At present these rights of way pass through an arable 
landscape, with some open views across the site and surrounding countryside.  
 

8.24 Hampshire County Council (HCC) has produced Countryside Access Plans 
(CAP) where HCC sets out how it will manage and improve the Public Right of 
Way (PRoW)  network.  The main issues identified within the CAP relate to the 
connectivity and condition of the existing access network.  This development 
proposes to accommodate the footpaths on their existing routes and would not 
disrupt the connectivity of the PRoW network. 
 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 31



8.25 To mitigate the impact of the solar panels additional planting is proposed to 
create ‘green corridors’ alongside the rights of way.  Andover Ramblers have 
requested that instead of planting adjacent to the route that a 5 metre buffer is 
allowed either side of the route before planting. Whilst this is noted HCC RoW 
who maintain the footpath network have acknowledged that there are sufficient 
‘green corridors’ to screen the development.  The Andover Ramblers have also 
requested an additional footpath route be created to mitigate the change to the 
existing footpath network.  HCC PRoW have supported this request.  The route 
suggested by Andover Ramblers would result in a new path from Kimpton 
FP16 to the track known as Cow Lane or an alternative route that would 
transition along the southern fence of the solar farm. 
 

8.26 It is acknowledged that the proposed solar farm would have an impact on the 
character of the rights of way network in the area.  The policy test for T1 is 
whether it would have an adverse impact on function, safety and character of 
and accessibility to the local rights of way network.   The Andover Ramblers 
believe that the change from an arable field to a solar farm would result in the 
creation of a quasi-industrial landscape.  The majority of the footpath route 
around and through the site would only encounter the solar farm along one 
side of the footpath apart from a stretch of some 300 metres of the restricted 
byway where walkers would be passing through the middle of the solar farm 
with panels on both sides.  Other than this section walkers would have one 
side overlooking open countryside allowing open views where possible or 
glimpsed views through vegetation.  The creation of green corridors and 
additional buffer planting where the footpaths or restricted byways encounter 
the solar farm is not considered to be out of character with the wider footpath 
network which is a mix of enclosed walking routes with occasional longer 
views.  It is not considered that there is an adverse impact on the PRoW 
network that justifies the suggested mitigation of a new route by the Andover 
Ramblers.  The current walking routes would be available on their existing line 
following construction of the solar farm and the proposed planting mitigation 
would result in the solar farm over time being screened from walkers utilising 
the PRoW network in the area.  It is considered that the proposed development 
would accord with Policy T1 of the Revised Local Plan. 
 

8.27 Biodiversity 
Policy E5 of the RLP states: 
 
Development in the Borough that will conserve, and where possible restore 
and/or enhance biodiversity will be permitted. 
 
Development that is likely to result in a significant effect, either alone or in 
combination, on an international or European nature conservation designation, 
or a site proposed for such designation, will need to satisfy the requirements of 
the Habitat Regulations. 
 
Development likely to result in the loss, deterioration or harm to habitats or 
species of importance to biodiversity or geological conservation interests, 
either directly or indirectly, will not be permitted unless; 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 32



a) The need for, and benefits of, the development in the proposed location 
outweighs the adverse effect of the relevant biodiversity interest 

b) It can be demonstrated that it could not reasonably be located on an 
alternative site that would result in less or no harm to the biodiversity 
interests; and 

c) Measures can be provided that would avoid, mitigate against, or as a 
last resort, compensate for the adverse effects likely to result from the 
development. 

Paragraphs 8.4, 8.5, 8.6 and 8.7 above consider the need for alternative 
energy sources to reach Government targets to reduce carbon emissions by 
2050, they also outline the alternative sites assessment and it is considered 
that the application accords with criterion (a) and (b) above.  Below sets out in 
more detail the proposed mitigation. 
 

8.28 The proposed Landscape and Biodiversity Strategy proposes additional 
planting in the form of hedgerows and woodland planting which would create 
improvements to the connectivity between existing habitats. 
 

8.29 Ancient Woodland 
Upper Newtown Copse is an ancient woodland and is adjacent to the proposed 
access track and concern was expressed by the Ecologist about maintaining a 
suitable buffer between this track and the woodland to protect it from soil 
compaction and root damage and indirect impacts from lighting, noise and 
recreational activity.  Guidance from Natural England outlines that a 15m buffer 
between development and ancient woodlands is required and that is largely to 
reduce the impact of the issues above.  Notwithstanding this the only part of 
the development within the 15m buffer area is the access track and this would 
be used infrequently, the Ecologist has raised no objection to the use of the 
track through the operational phase of the development proposed.  The 
Ecologist is suggesting mitigation measures through the construction phase 
and this would be secured via condition through the submission of a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan.    
 

8.30 Bats 
It has been confirmed within the submitted Ecological Assessment that there is 
no roosting potential for bats within the trees proposed to be removed to 
accommodate the development. No artificial lighting is proposed at night and 
this would be secured through a condition. 
 

8.31 Hares and other mammals 
Mammal gates are proposed approximately every 50 metres to ensure 
mammals are able to access the site.  The movement of mammals across the 
site can change over time and the Ecologist has advised that it may be more 
appropriate to submit a more detailed location plan for these through a pre 
commencement condition. A condition in this respect has therefore been 
recommended. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 33



8.32 Dormouse 
There is the potential for Dormice to be present in the area.  No woodland or 
boundary hedgerows suitable for dormice would be directly impacted by the 
proposed development.  Indirect impacts of the development are proposed to 
be dealt with through the use of protective fencing and a CEMP. 
 

8.33 Badgers 
There is evidence of a badger sett on the boundary of the site and this would 
require a 30 metre buffer zone to be incorporated into any layout and this has 
been achieved.  Mammal gates would also help badgers and these are 
discussed above and a condition in this respect has been recommended. 
 

8.34 Skylarks 
Three skylark breeding territories have been identified and these would require 
mitigation.  Alternative skylark plots just outside the site boundary are being 
secured through a S106. 
 

8.35 Stone Curlews 
Stone Curlews are one of the rarest ground nesting birds in the UK and are 
protected under Schedule 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.  It is an 
offence to intentionally or recklessly disturb birds and their young on or near an 
active nest and also to disturb a breeding attempt.  Stone Curlews are a 
migratory species and breed in limited areas within the UK.  Salisbury Plain is 
a known area where they do breed and the application site is on the edge of 
the Plain.  Salisbury Plain has a Special Protection Area (SPA) where stone 
curlews are a notable species and this is located 4km to the west of the site. 
 

8.36 The application is submitted with Ecological Surveys and Stone Curlew 
Mitigation Strategy.  The site was surveyed between April and August 2021 
and concluded that there were no nesting birds within the site. There has been 
a siting of a pair of stone curlews on off-site land during the survey period.  In 
conjunction with the RSPB the applicant has agreed to provide a Stone Curlew 
nesting plot on offsite land adjacent to the proposed solar array.  This will 
conform to RSPB standards in how to create a plot of this nature and will be 
secured through a S106. The S106 to secure the skylark plots and stone 
curlew plots is currently in progress 
 

8.37 It is considered that the mitigation proposed and conditions recommended 
would mitigate against the adverse effects likely to result from the development 
and accord with Policy E5. 
 

8.38 Heritage Issues 
Policy E9 of the TVBRLP requires development that affects a heritage asset to 
make a positive contribution to sustaining or enhancing the significance of the 
heritage asset.  Designated heritage assets impacted by the application 
include listed buildings, a conservation area and archaeology.  The proposed 
solar farm is to the west of the village of Kimpton and is outside of the 
Conservation Area.  Due to the topography of the land there would be no views 
of the solar farm from the Conservation Area which is over a kilometre away 
and it is not considered that with the distances involved that there would be 
any detrimental impact on the setting of the Conservation Area at Kimpton. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 34



8.39 Kimpton has a number of listed buildings within it.  It is considered that as with 
the Conservation Area, due to the topography and the landscape features 
there would be no views of the solar farm from any of the listed buildings within 
the village resulting in no change in terms of their setting.  The Conservation 
Officer has raised no objection. 
 

8.40 Archaeology 
The application has been submitted with a Cultural Heritage Assessment 
(CHA).  The CHA identifies three specific areas of archaeological sensitivity.  
Area 1 and Area 2 have identified Iron Age and Romano-British remains.  Area 
3 was not available for surveying.  A Mitigation Strategy has been submitted 
which advises that work within the sensitive areas would follow a separate 
methodology.  Within these sensitive areas measures would include no dig 
surface mounting of solar panels, laying access track on the surface, 
suspending cabling where possible and limiting cable troughs to 0.15m in 
depth.  The County Archaeologist has advised that they raise no objection to 
this approach and as such archaeological issues would not present an 
overriding concern. 
 

8.41 It is considered that the development accords with Policy E9 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.42 Surface Water Run Off 
The site is located within an area of low flood risk however as the site is 
greater than 1 hectare in size the NPPF advises that a Flood Risk Assessment 
should be submitted and this has been provided.  Solar installations generally 
do not significantly increase impermeable surfaces as there is little 
hardstanding involved other than for the bases of buildings. The solar panels 
do however prevent rain from falling directly onto the ground and concentrate 
rainwater to the ground in front of each table of panels. This can have minor 
implications for soil compaction, surface water run-off and flood risk.  
The Flood Risk Assessment submitted concludes that there would be some 
additional run off from the site due to the supporting structures.  This would be 
managed by the use of Swales which would have a greater volume of storage 
than the 1 in 100 year storm event and an allowance for climate change.  The 
LLFA have suggested a Condition. It is considered that the development would 
not increase the risk of flooding on or off-site and accords with Policy E7 of the 
TVBRLP and the NPPF. 
   

8.43 Residential Amenity 
The nearest residential dwellings to the solar array are those that are located 
at the western end of Downs Road, Kimpton.  There is a cluster of three 
dwellings Kimpton Down Farm, Lyndale and Kimpton Wood House.  The latter 
two dwellings share a boundary with the fields to the west.  The field to the 
west immediately adjacent to these dwellings would not be utilised by the 
proposed solar array.  The solar array would be located to the north west and 
south west of these dwellings.  Due to the topography and woodland there 
would be no views of the solar array to the north west which would be over 400 
metres away from the closest property.  The solar array to the south west 
would be located in a field that would initially be partially visible to the 
occupiers of these dwellings as the hedge between the undeveloped parcel 
and the solar array parcel is in places relatively open.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 35



 
 
8.44 Kimpton Wood House 

The closest dwelling to the array would be Kimpton Wood House; the field that 
the solar array would occupy would be over 190 metres at its closest to 
Kimpton Wood House and would be screened from the solar array by existing 
woodland.  With the existing screening and the separation distances any 
change in outlook from this property would not be detrimental.   A woodland 
area to the south of this property and along the boundary between the fields 
immediately adjacent to these dwellings and the field containing the solar array 
is proposed as mitigation.  Over time this would screen longer distance views 
of the solar array. At present no details of the number, density and size of this 
woodland planting has been provided but this would be secured through 
condition.  
 

8.45 It is considered that with the proposed distances between the properties and 
the solar array and the long term mitigation proposed the development accords 
with policies LHW4 and E8 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan. 
 

8.46 Glint and Glare 
Policy E8 of the RLP requires development to not result in pollution which 
would cause unacceptable risks to amongst other things general amenity.   
The Planning Practice Guidance for Renewable and Low Carbon Energy does 
require an assessment of glint and glare for solar arrays. Glint may be 
produced as a direct reflection of the sun in the surface of the PV solar panel 
(or frame) so as to cause viewer distraction.  Glare however is a continuous 
source of brightness as a reflection of the bright sky around the sun, rather 
than a direct reflection of the sun. The panels are constructed of materials that 
are designed to be anti-reflective as their purpose is to take in light, not reflect 
it. Frames are often finished in matt finish to reduce potential for reflection.  
This is confirmed in paragraph 6.18 of the Planning Statement accompanying 
the application. 
 

8.47 The road to the north of the proposed solar farm would have glimpsed views of 
the solar array, although at this point the solar panels would be facing away 
from the road meaning glint and glare if it occurred would not be an issue. 
 

8.48 The only other place glint and glare could be encountered is from the public 
footpath network.  Due to the proposed screening and in some cases distance 
from the network any glint and glare would not be considered significant or 
detrimental in amenity terms. 
 

8.49 The potential for glint and glare can also impact aircraft.  The MOD were 
consulted on this application and have raised no objection on safeguarding 
issues. 
 

8.50 It is considered that the proposed solar farm would not give rise to 
unacceptable impacts from glint and glare and would accord with Policy E8 of 
the Revised local Plan. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 36



8.51 Other Issues 
Concern has been expressed by third parties that following 40 years use as a 
solar farm the land would be ‘brownfield’ and would be developed.  A condition 
is recommended to applications of this nature requiring the land to be returned 
to its former condition no later than 40 years from the first export date or within 
six months from when the array does not generate electricity for 12 
consecutive months.  This condition requires the land to be returned to its 
former state and does not create ‘brownfield’ land. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION  
9.1 Planning Balance 

The impact of the solar farm on the highway network, biodiversity, heritage and 
residential amenity are considered acceptable and accord with the relevant 
policies of the TVBRLP. 
 

9.2 It is accepted that the solar farm would have a harmful impact on the wider 
landscape which is popular with local walkers and in turn this would impact 
upon the walkers experience as they utilise the local footpath network.  Longer 
distance views of the solar array would be harmful and they would not be 
mitigated during the 40 year life of the solar array.  However this is balanced 
against the proposal having a maximum capacity of 49.9mw which in turn 
would power 16,581 homes. This would contribute to energy security and 
reducing the potential impacts of climate change. This development would 
make a significant and valuable contribution to meeting national targets for 
renewable energy   
 

9.3 It is considered that the benefits of the proposed development outweigh the 
harm caused by the proposed solar array and as such it is recommended that 
the application be supported. 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 Delegate to the Head of Planning and Building that subject to satisfactory 

prior conclusion of a S106 agreement to secure 6 skylark plots on offsite 
land and a 2ha stone curlew plot on offsite land then PERMISSION 
subject to: 

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. This 
permission shall be for a period of 40 years from the date that the 
development is first connected to the grid (the "First Export Date"). 
Two weeks' notice of this first connection shall be given to the 
Local Planning Authority in writing.  The development shall be 
removed and the land restored to its former condition no later than 
the date 40 years from the First Export Date or within six months of 
the development failing to generate electricity for 12 consecutive 
months, whichever occurs first. All structures and materials, and 
any associated goods and chattels shall be removed from the site 
and the land shall be restored to its former condition in accordance 
with a scheme of decommissioning work and land restoration that 
shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 37



Reason:  In order that the land is restored to its original condition 
following the expiry of the period of time whereby electricity is likely 
to be generated by the proposed development and for which a 
countryside location has been shown to be essentially required, in 
accordance with policies COM2 and E2 of the Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans; 
SD-01; SD-02; SD-04; SD-06: SD-07; SD-08; SD-16;SD-17; SD-20; 
SD24; SD27; SD-26; DZ 01 REV12; LCS060 SP-01 REV09; LCS060 
PLE-01 REV20. 
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning 

 3. No development shall start on site until the access, including the 
footway and/or verge crossing, shall be constructed and provided 
in accordance with the approved plans. The lines of sight splays 
shown on the approved plans shall be kept free of any obstruction 
exceeding 1 metre in height above the adjacent carriageway and 
shall be subsequently maintained so thereafter.  
Reason:  To provide satisfactory access and in the interests of 
highway safety. 

 4. No development shall start on site until a Construction Method 
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, which shall include:  
a) The provision of long term facilities for contractor parking;  
b) The arrangements for deliveries associated with all 

construction works; 
c) Methods and phasing of construction works;  
d) Access and egress for plant and machinery;  
e) Protection of pedestrian routes and public Rights of Way 

during construction; 
f) Location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction 

material and plant storage areas;  
g) Traffic routing and construction work shall only take place in 

accordance with the approved method statement.  
h) Measures to control dust, noise and avoidance of light 

nuisance. 
The Construction Method Statement shall be implemented as 
approved for the duration of the construction works. 
Reason:  In the interest of the amenities of the local area and in 
accordance with Policy E8 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan 2016. 

 5. Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted, a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP), 
incorporating measures to avoid impacts on the adjacent 
designated sites, habitats and species shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This must 
include all requirements outlined within the report titled 'Meadow 
Solar Farm Ecological Assessment' undertaken by Landscape 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 38



 
Science Consultancy Ltd., August 2021.  Development shall 
subsequently proceed in accordance with any such approved 
details for the duration of the construction works. 
Reason:  To protect notable locally designated sites, habitats and 
species in accordance with Policy E5 of the Test Valley Revised 
Local Plan 2016. 

 6. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a 
Biodiversity Management and Enhancement Plan for created and 
retained habitats on site must be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This must include all 
requirements outlined within the report titled 'Meadow Solar Farm 
Ecological Assessment' undertaken by Landscape Science 
Consultancy Ltd, August 2021.  The development shall proceed in 
accordance with any such approved details, with mitigation and 
enhancement features being maintained for the 40 year life of the 
solar array as a minimum. Photographic evidence of habitats 
created on site should be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
within 6 months of completion. 
Reason:  To ensure the favourable conservation status of protected 
species and habitats, and enhance the biodiversity of the site in 
accordance with Policy E5 of the Test Valley Revised Local Plan  

 7. Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted, the 
results of the updated badger surveys of the site (to be carried out 
by a qualified ecologist), along with details of any necessary 
resulting mitigation, including specification and location of mammal 
gates, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Thereafter any agreed mitigation shall be 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
Reason:  To ensure the favourable conservation status of protected 
species in accordance with the NPPF and Policy E5 of the Test 
Valley Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 8. No development shall start on site until details of a scheme to 
prevent surface water from the site discharging on to the adjacent 
highway have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. The development works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details before any part of the 
development is occupied and shall be retained thereafter.  
Reason:  To ensure adequate provision for surface water drainage 
and avoid discharge of water onto the public highway in 
accordance with Policy T1 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan 2016. 

 9 No development shall begin until a detailed surface water drainage 
scheme for the site, based on the principles within the Flood Risk 
Assessment ref: PFA Consulting May 2021 has been submitted and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The submitted 
details should include: 

 A technical summary highlighting any changes to the design 
from that within the approved Flood Risk Assessment. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 39



 

 Infiltration test results undertaken in accordance with BRE365 
and providing a representative assessment of those locations 
where infiltration features are proposed and demonstrating the 
1m unsaturated zone. 

 Detailed drainage plans to include type, layout and dimensions 
of drainage features including references to link to the drainage 
calculations. 

 Detailed drainage calculations to demonstrate existing runoff 
rates are not exceeded and there is sufficient attenuation for 
storm events up to and including 1:100 + climate change.  

 Confirmation that sufficient water quality measures have been 
included to satisfy the methodology in the Ciria SuDS Manual 
C753. 

 Exceedance plans demonstrating the flow paths and areas of 
ponding in the event of blockages or storms exceeding design 
criteria. 

Reason:  To ensure adequate provision for surface water drainage 
and avoid discharge of water onto the public highway in 
accordance with Policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan 2016. 

 10. The construction route to build the solar array shall be in 
accordance with the amended Transport Statement submitted on 
8 November 2021. 
Reason:  In the interest of the amenities of the local area and in 
accordance with Policy T1 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan 2016. 

 11. The proposed hard surfaces shall either be made of porous 
materials or provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the 
hard surfaces to a permeable or porous surface within the site.  
These surfaces shall be retained and maintained for the lifetime of 
the development. 
Reason:  To ensure adequate provision for surface water drainage 
and avoid discharge of water onto the highway in accordance with 
Policy T1 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 12. Prior to the installation of any external fixed plant or mechanical 
equipment, an assessment of noise from the operation of the plant 
or equipment shall be undertaken using the procedures within 
British Standard BS4142:2014+A1:2019 and a report detailing the 
results and any noise attenuation measures shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any fixed 
plant, mechanical equipment and associated noise attenuation 
measures approved pursuant to this condition shall be installed and 
operated in accordance with the approved details and thereafter 
permanently retained in that condition.  
Reason:  In the interest of the amenities in the local area in 
accordance with Policy E8 of the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan 2016. 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 40



 13. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details, 
mitigation and maintenance as set out in the Flood Risk and 
Assessment received on 9 June 2021. 
Reason:  To ensure adequate drainage of the site in accordance 
with Policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 14. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
Archaeological Mitigation Strategy, Written Scheme of Investigation 
dated September 2021. 
Reason:  The site is potentially of archaeological significance in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E9. 

 15. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the Stone 
Curlew Mitigation Strategy dated November 2021 and updated April 
2022. 
Reason:  To protect stone curlews in accordance with Policy E5 of 
the Test Valley Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 16. Prior to the erection of any solar panels on the site a landscaping 
scheme in accordance with the approved Plan EDP 6 Landscape 
and Biodiversity Strategy dated 18.08.2021 as contained within the 
Landscape and Visual appraisal by EDP dated August 2021 shall 
first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
The scheme shall include: 

a) Details of the location, number, size and density of plants for 
all new hedgerows (including specimen trees where 
proposed) ; 

b) Details of the location, number, size and density of plants to 
be used in the infilling of gaps within the existing hedgerows; 

c) Details of location, number, size and density of plants for all 
new woodland planting; 

d) Details of the proposed establishment of the calcareous 
wildflower swards located under the solar panels; 

e) Details of the location, number, size and density of plants to 
be used in the proposed habitat buffer; 

f) Details of the location, number, size and density of plants to 
be used in the woodland edge planting areas; 

g) Details of any gates proposed. 
All landscaping shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details and shall be completed before the installation is 
first connected to the grid. 
Reason:  To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the 
character of the development, and to assist in the development 
successfully integrating with the landscape, in the interest of visual 
amenity, and to contribute to the character of the local area in 
accordance with policies E1 and E2 of the Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 17. Prior to the erection of any solar panels on the site a schedule of 
landscape maintenance and subsequent landscape management for 
a period of 40 years shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The schedule shall include: 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 41



a) details of agricultural use of the land and associated 
management practices; 

b) details of how the success or failure of the initial landscape 
planting and associated land-management regime is to be 
monitored and reported to the Local Planning Authority 
annually for the first 5 years after planting and thereafter on a 
5 year basis; 

c) details of the means by which any failures in landscape 
planting are to be identified and reasonably remedied over 
the 40 year life of the development hereby permitted; 

d) details of responsibilities for maintenance and management 
of landscaping. 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
Reason:  To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the 
character of the development, and to assist in the development 
successfully integrating with the landscape, in the interest of visual 
amenity, and to contribute to the character of the local area in 
accordance with policies E1 and E2 of the Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 18. Prior to any lighting being installed details of the location, height 
and lux levels will be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  Development shall proceed in 
accordance with any approved details. 
Reason:  To retain control over lighting levels within the area to 
protect existing bat populations within the area in accordance with 
Policy E5 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 Notes to applicant: 
 1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused 
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a 
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice 
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in 
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions. 

 2. Nothing connected with the development or its future use should 
have any adverse effect on the rights of way which must remain 
available for public use at all times. 

 3. There must be no surface alterations to the Public Rights of Way 
without the consent of Hampshire County Council as Highway 
Authority.  To carry out any such works without this permission 
would constitute an offence under s131 of the Highways Act 1980. 

 4. No builders or contractors vehicles, machinery, materials, fencing, 
spoil or anything associated with the works should be left on or 
near the public Rights of Way so as to obstruct, hinder or provide a 
hazard to users. 

 5. All vehicles accessing the site over a Public Right of Way should 
give way to the public at all times. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 42



 6 Attention is drawn to the requirements of the Agreement dated (in 
progress) under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 which affects this development 
 
 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 43



-

21/01749/FULLN

Key
21/01749/FULLN

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020
OS 100024295. You are permitted to use this
data solely to enable you to respond to, or 
interact with, the organisation that provided
you with the data. You are not permitted to
copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this
data to third parties in any form.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 44



P
i
c
k
f
o
r
d
 
H

i
l
l

C

F

T
u
m
u
lu
s

E

T

L

K
i
m

p
t
o
n
 
G

o
r
s
e

C

F

D

e

f

E

E

R

,

 

C

o

 

C

o

n

s

t

 

&

 

U

A

 

B

d

y

0

.

9

1

m

 

F

F

E

E

R

,

 

C

o

 

C

o

n

s

t

 

&

 

U

A

 

B

d

y

U

n

d

1
1

6
.
7

m

T

r

a

c

k

T

r

a

c

k

E
E

R
,
 
C

o
 
C

o
n
s
t
 
&

 
U

A
 
B

d
y

E

T

L

D

e

f

O

X

 
D

R

O

V

E

 
(
T

R

A

C

K

)

T

r

a

c

k

O

X

 
D

R

O

V

E

 
(

T

R

A

C

K

)

0

.
9

1

m

 
F

F

E

E

R

,
 
C

o

 
C

o

n

s

t
 
&

 
U

A

 
B

d

y

C

F

T
r
a
c
k

W
a
r
r
e
n
 
H

i
l
l

U
p
p
e
r
 
N

e
w

d
o
w

n
 
C

o
p
s
e

E

T

L

T
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
C

o
u
r
s
e

S
t
o

n
e

T

r

a

c

k

C

F

W
o

r
k
i
n

g
s
 
(
d

i
s
)

T

r

a

c

k

E

T

L

(s
it
e 
of
)

Track

1
1

5
.
7

m

H
o

u
s
e

T
r
a
i
n
i
n
g
 
C

o
u
r
s
e

E

D

 
B

d
y

C

F

0

.

9

1

m

 

R

H

T

r

a

c

k

T

r

a

c

k

K
i
m

p
t
o
n
 
G

o
r
s
e

U

n

d

C

F

C

F

T

r
a
c
k

T
h

e
 
G

a
l
l
o

p
s

U

n

d

D
e
f

T

r

a

c

k

L
y
n

d
a

l
e

D

e

f

T

r

a

c

k

S

t
o
n
e

C
o
p
s
e

T

r
a

c
k

E

E

R

,

 

C

o

 

C

o

n

s

t

 

&

 

U

A

 

B

d

y

F
S

T

r
a

c

k

L
i
t
t
l
e
 
P

e
r
h
a
m

 
C

o
p
s
e

C

F

A

N

D

O

V

E

R

 

L

A

N

E

F
a
r
m

K
i
m

p
t
o
n
 
W

o
o
d

1
0

9
.
6

m

T
r
a
c
k

C
o
t
t
a
g
e
s

D

O

W

N

S
h
o
d
d
e
s
d
e
n
 
G

r
a
n
g
e

9
6

.
8

m

1
0

2
.
4

m

T

r
a
in

in
g
 
C

o
u
r
s
e

K
e

e
p

e
r
'
s
 
C

o
t
t
a

g
e

1
1

T
a

n
k

L
o
w

e
r
 
N

e
w

d
o
w

n

P
o

n
d

T

r
a

c

k

K
i
m

p
t
o
n
 
D

o
w

n

C
o

t
t
a

g
e

T

r

a

c

k

R

O

A

D

C

O

W

 

L

A

N

E

 

(

T

R

A

C

K

)

T

r

a

c

k

M
e
a
d
o
w

 
C

o
p
s
e

T

r

a

c

k

K
i
m

p
t
o
n
 
D

o
w

n
 
F

a
r
m

S
h

e
e

p
 
W

a
s
h

P
a

r
l
o

u
r

T
u
m
u
lu
s

C

O

W

 

L

A

N

E

 

(

T

R

A

C

K

)

P
o

n
d

T

r
a

c

k

T

r

a

c

k

G
r
e
a
t
 
S

h
o
d
d
e
s
d
e
n

K
i
m

p
t
o

n
 
W

o
o

d

T
r
a
c
k

2

9
7

.
1

m

G
P

DEACON

G
r
e
a
t

N

e

w

T

r
a

c

k

1
0

0
.
0

m

C
o

r
n

e
r
 
C

o
t
t
a

g
e

9
8

.
4

m

L
i
t
t
l
e
 
S

h
o
d
d
e
s
d
e
n

1

2

 

t

o

 

1

3

1
0

3
.
0

m

L
B

ROAD

L
i
t
t
l
e
t
o
n
 
C

o
p
s
e

F
o

r
e

m
a

n
s
 
C

o
t
t
a

g
e

G
P

Z
e

l
a

D

E

A

C

O

N

B

u

n

g

a

l

o

w

S
h
o
d
d
e
s
d
e
n

L
i
t
t
l
e

 
S

h
o

d
d

e
s
d

e
n

 
F

a
r
m

1
0

3
.
3

m

L
i
t
t
l
e
 
E

a
s
t
l
e
y

R

O

A

D

P
o

n
d

S

H

O

D

D

E

S

D

E

N

 
L

A

N

E

M
a
n
o
r

T
h

e
 
C

o
t
t
a

g
e

W
e

l
l
 
C

o
t
t
a

g
e

E
l
m

 
C

o
t
t
a

g
e

E

T

L

B
r
a

m
b

l
e

 
C

o
t
t
a

g
e

W
o

o
d

w
a

y
 
H

o
u

s
e

T

r
a

c

k

S
h
o
d
d
e
s
d
e
n

BYW
AY

BYW
AY

BYW
AY

BY
WA
Y

BY
W
AY

BY
W
AY

BYW
AY

BYWAY

BYWAY

BYWAY

BYW
AY

BYWA
Y

BYWAY BYWAY
BYWAY

BYWAY
BYWAY

BYWAY BYWAY BYWAY BYWAY BYWAY BYWAY

BYWAY
BYWA

Y
BYWA

Y
BYW

AY
BYW

AY
BYW

AY
BYW

AY
BYW

AY
BYW

AY
BYW

AY
BY
WA
Y

BY
W
AY BYWAY

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FPFP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP FP FP FP FP FP FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

FP
FP

E

L

E

H

V

 

 

1

1

k

V

E

L

E

H

V

 

 

1

1

k

V

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

FP

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

E

L

E

H

V

B

O
r
d
n
a
n
c
e
 
S

u
r
v
e
y
,
 
(
c
)
 
C

r
o
w

n
 
C

o
p
y
r
i
g
h
t
 
2
0
2
1
.
 
A

l
l
 
r
i
g
h
t
s
 
r
e
s
e
r
v
e
d
.
 
L
i
c
e
n
c
e
 
n
u
m

b
e
r
 
1
0
0
0
2
2
4
3
2

B

R
e
v
i
s
i
o
n
s
:

I
n

s
p

e
c
t
e

d

L
E

G
E

N
D

:

T
h

i
s
 
d
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
i
s
 
t
h

e
 
c
o
p

y
r
i
g

h
t
 
o
f
 
L
o
w

 
C

a
r
b
o
n

 
a

n
d
 
m

u
s
t
 
n
o
t
 
b
e

 
r
e

p
r
o

d
u

c
e

d
 
i
n

 
w

h
o

l
e
 
o

r

i
n
 
p

a
r
t
 
o
r
 
u

s
e

d
 
i
n
 
a

n
y
 
m

a
n
n

e
r
 
w

i
t
h
o

u
t
 
t
h
e

i
r
 
w

r
i
t
t
e
n

 
p
e

r
m

i
s
s
i
o
n

.

S
c
a

l
e
d

 
d

i
m

e
n
s
i
o
n

s
 
m

u
s
t
 
n

o
t
 
b

e
 
t
a
k
e

n
 
f
r
o
m

 
t
h
i
s
 
d
r
a
w

i
n
g

.
 
A

l
l
 
d

i
m

e
n
s
i
o
n

s
 
a
r
e

 
t
o

 
b
e

 
c
o

n
f
i
r
m

e
d
 
o
n

 
s
i
t
e

 
p

r
i
o
r
 
t
o

c
o
m

m
e

n
c
e
m

e
n
t
 
o
f
 
w

o
r
k

R
e

v
i
s
i
o

n
D

a
t
e

R
e

v
i
s
i
o

n
 
N

o
t
e

s
D

r
a

w
n

L
M

0
1

0
2

.
0

3
.
2

1
F

i
r
s
t
 
I
s
s
u

e
H

N

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
N

u
m

b
e
r
:

P
L

E
-
0
1

D
r
a
w

n
:

H
N

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
:

R
e
v
i
s
i
o
n
:

L
M

0
2
.
0
3
.
2
0
2
1

F
i
r
s
t
 
I
s
s
u
e
d
:

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
C

o
d
e
:

L
C

S
0
6
0

S
h
e
e
t
 
S

i
z
e
:

S
c
a
l
e
:

A
N

A
1

D
r
a
w

i
n
g
 
T

i
t
l
e
:

1
3

 
B

e
r
k
e

l
e

y
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
,
 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 
W

1
J
 
8

D
U

T
e

l
:
 
+

4
4

(
0

)
2

0
7

 
4

0
9

0
7

0
0

e
n

q
u

i
r
i
e

s
@

l
o

w
c
a

r
b

o
n

.
c
o

m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
w

w
w

.
l
o

w
c
a

r
b

o
n

.
c
o

m

2
0

P
r
o
j
e
c
t
:

S
t
a
t
u
s
:

F
O

R
 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G

K
i
m

p
t
o

n
 
D

o
w

n
s

I
n

d
i
c
a
t
i
v
e
 
S

i
t
e
 
L

a
y
o

u
t

K
i
m

p
t
o

n
 
D

o
w

n
s

S
o

l
a

r
 
F

a
r
m

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
1
:
5
0
0
0
@

A
1

K
I
M

P
T
O

N
 
D

O
W

N
S
 
S
I
T
E
 
L
A
Y
O

U
T
 
P
L
A
N

1

1
5

0
1

0
0

5
0

2
0

0
2

5
0

3
0

0
3

5
0

4
0

0
4

5
0

5
0

0
m

S
C

A
L

E
 
1

:
5

0
0

0

0

A
1

L
M

0
2

0
3

.
0

3
.
2

1
P

a
n

e
l
 
U

p
d

a
t
e

d
G

P

L
M

0
3

0
5

.
0

3
.
2

1
A

m
e

n
d

e
d

 
R

e
d

 
L

i
n

e
J
F

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
1
:
5
0
0
@

A
1

S
U

B
S
T
A
T
I
O

N
 
C
O

M
P
O

U
N

D
 
D

E
T
A
I
L

2

S
c
a
l
e
:
 
1
:
5
0
0
@

A
1

S
U

B
S
T
A
T
I
O

N
 
C
O

M
P
O

U
N

D
 
D

E
T
A
I
L

2

2

L
M

0
4

1
1

.
0

3
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
H

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
S

I
T

E

O
/
H

 
E

L
E

C
 
C

A
B

L
E

H
V

E
L
E

H
V

E
L
E

H
V

E
L
E

H
V

E
L
E

D
N

O
 
A

C
C

E
S

S

P
E

R
I
M

E
T

E
R

 
F

E
N

C
E

L
I
N

E

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
A

N
D

M
A

I
N

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 
 
A

C
C

E
S

S

S
I
T

E
 
A

C
C

E
S

S

V
E

G
E

T
A

T
I
O

N
:

F
O

O
T

P
A

T
H

F
P

F
P

F
P

F
P

F
P

F
P

F
P

F
P

R
E

S
T

I
C

T
E

D
 
B

Y
W

A
Y

B
Y

W
A

Y
B

Y
W

A
Y

B
Y

W
A

Y
B

Y
W

A
Y

L
M

0
5

0
1

.
0

4
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
H

N

L
M

0
6

0
8

.
0

4
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
H

N

L
M

0
7

1
4

.
0

4
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
P

L

L
M

0
8

3
0

.
0

4
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
P

L

L
M

0
9

0
6

.
0

5
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
J
F

L
M

1
0

1
2

.
0

5
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
J
F

L
M

1
1

1
3

.
0

5
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
J
F

L
M

1
2

2
4

.
0

5
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
J
F

L
M

1
3

2
6

.
0

5
.
2

1
U

p
d

a
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
r
e

m
o

v
e

 
w

a
t
e

r
 
t
r
o

u
g

h
s

P
L

L
M

1
4

2
7

.
0

5
.
2

1
U

p
d

a
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
s
u

i
t
 
c
o

m
m

e
n

t
s

M
C

L
M

1
5

2
7

.
0

5
.
2

1
A

m
e

n
d

e
d

 
R

e
d

 
L

i
n

e
M

C

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
V

E
G

E
T

A
T

I
O

N

S
O

L
A

R
 
S

I
T

E
 
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

:

S
U

B
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

S
E

C
U

R
I
T

Y
 
G

A
T

E

C
C

T
V

 
C

A
M

E
R

A

S
O

L
A

R
 
P

A
N

E
L

M
O

D
U

L
E

S

(
P

I
T

C
H

 
=

 
7

m
)

(
R

.
S

 
=

3
.
4

m
)

I
N

V
E

R
T

E
R

B
A

T
T

E
R

Y

B

2
0

m
 
M

A
S

T

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

V
E

G
E

T
A

T
I
O

N

L
M

1
6

1
2

.
0

8
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
P

L

L
M

1
7

1
8

.
0

8
.
2

1
R

e
v
i
s
e

d
P

L

B
L

1
8

2
0

.
0

9
.
2

1
R

e
d

 
L

i
n

e
 
a

n
d

 
B

e
l
l
 
M

o
u

t
h

 
U

p
d

a
t
e

d
J
S

B
L

1
9

0
2

.
1

1
.
2

1
R

e
d

 
L

i
n

e
 
a

n
d

 
B

e
l
l
 
M

o
u

t
h

 
U

p
d

a
t
e

d
P

L

T
E

M
P

O
R

A
R

Y
 
A

C
C

E
S

S

B
L

2
0

0
3

.
1

1
.
2

1
R

e
d

 
L

i
n

e
 
a

n
d

 
B

e
l
l
 
M

o
u

t
h

 
U

p
d

a
t
e

d
P

L

L
A

Y
D

O
W

N
 
A

R
E

A

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 M.K.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
MOUNTED ON

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
SP INSULATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
DELTA FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
HAPAM DISC A103

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
145DT A120

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
HAPAM DISC A203

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
ES A111B

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
HAPAM DISC A113

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
ES A111A

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
HAPAM DISC A114

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
A110 M.K.

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
(HIGH LEVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
PANEL 2.9m NGTS.2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
ISOLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
145kV A110 METERING CB 

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
PANEL 2.9m NGTS.2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
ISOLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
CSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
CSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
CSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
ES A221

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
ES A201

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
ES A101

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
ES A121B

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
ES A111C

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
ES A121A

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
PANEL 2.9m NGTS.2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
ISOLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
GT1

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
HIGH LEVEL PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
HIGH LEVEL PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
HIGH LEVEL PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
FUTURE PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
6x630mm  AL XLPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
MECH BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
MECH BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
FUTURE PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
FUTURE PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
FUTURE OVERHEAD GANTRY (POSITION OF GANTRY INDICATIVE ONLY BASED ON SSE DRG No 17_15265_09 A) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
FUTURE OVERHEAD GANTRY (POSITION OF GANTRY INDICATIVE ONLY BASED ON SSE DRG No 17_15265_09 A) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
120 M.K.

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
MOUNTED ON

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
SP INSULATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
DELTA FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
HAPAM DISC A103

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
145DT A120

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
HAPAM DISC A203

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
ES A111B

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
HAPAM DISC A113

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
ES A111A

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
HAPAM DISC A114

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
A110 M.K.

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
(HIGH LEVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
PANEL 2.9m NGTS.2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
ISOLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
145kV A110 METERING CB 

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
PANEL 2.9m NGTS.2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
ISOLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
CSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
CSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
CSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
ES A221

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
ES A201

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
ES A101

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
ES A121B

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
ES A111C

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
ES A121A

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
PANEL 2.9m NGTS.2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
ISOLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
GT1

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
HIGH LEVEL PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
HIGH LEVEL PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
HIGH LEVEL PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
FUTURE PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
6x630mm  AL XLPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
MECH BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
MECH BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
FUTURE PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
FUTURE PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
FUTURE OVERHEAD GANTRY (POSITION OF GANTRY INDICATIVE ONLY BASED ON SSE DRG No 17_15265_09 A) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
FUTURE OVERHEAD GANTRY (POSITION OF GANTRY INDICATIVE ONLY BASED ON SSE DRG No 17_15265_09 A) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
120 M.K.

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
MOUNTED ON

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
SP INSULATOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
DELTA FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
HAPAM DISC A103

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
145DT A120

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
HAPAM DISC A203

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
ES A111B

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
HAPAM DISC A113

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
ES A111A

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
HAPAM DISC A114

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
A110 M.K.

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
(HIGH LEVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
CVT

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
PANEL 2.9m NGTS.2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
ISOLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
145kV A110 METERING CB 

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
PANEL 2.9m NGTS.2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
ISOLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
CSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
CSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
CSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
ES A221

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
ES A201

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
ES A101

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
ES A121B

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
ES A111C

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
ES A121A

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
PANEL 2.9m NGTS.2.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
ISOLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
GT1

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
HIGH LEVEL PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
HIGH LEVEL PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
HIGH LEVEL PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
FUTURE PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
6x630mm  AL XLPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
MECH BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
MECH BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
FUTURE PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
FUTURE PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
FUTURE OVERHEAD GANTRY (POSITION OF GANTRY INDICATIVE ONLY BASED ON SSE DRG No 17_15265_09 A) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
FUTURE OVERHEAD GANTRY (POSITION OF GANTRY INDICATIVE ONLY BASED ON SSE DRG No 17_15265_09 A) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
SA

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
RED

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
BLUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
LC



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 46



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 47



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 48



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 49



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 50



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 51



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 52



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 53



GROUND LEVEL

20
0

19
80

0

20
00

0

Revisions:
Inspected

NOTES:

This drawing is the copyright of Low Carbon and must not be reproduced in whole or
in part or used in any manner without their written permission.

Scaled dimensions must not be taken from this drawing. All dimensions are to be confirmed on site prior to
commencement of work

A4

Revision Date Revision Notes Drawn

Drawing Number:

Drawn: Checked:

Revision:

First Issued:

Project Code:

Sheet Size: Scale:

Drawing Title:

13 Berkeley Street, London W1J 8DU
Tel: +44(0)207 4090700

enquiries@lowcarbon.com         www.lowcarbon.com

00

01 11.05.21 First Issue JF

Revisions:
Inspected

NOTES:

This drawing is the copyright of Low Carbon and must not be reproduced in whole or
in part or used in any manner without their written permission.

Scaled dimensions must not be taken from this drawing. All dimensions are to be confirmed on site prior to
commencement of work

Revision Date Revision Notes Drawn

Drawing Number:

SD-24

Drawn: Checked:

Revision:

First Issued:

Project Code:

LCS-
Sheet Size: Scale:

1:100A4

Drawing Title:

13 Berkeley Street, London W1J 8DU
Tel: +44(0)207 4090700

enquiries@lowcarbon.com         www.lowcarbon.com

01

BL01 First Issue

Comms Mast Drawing

JF BL 11.05.2021

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 54



 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 55



 
 
 

 
 APPLICATION NO. 22/00833/FULLN 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - NORTH 
 REGISTERED 24.03.2022 
 APPLICANT Imperial Homes Southern 
 SITE Williams Garage, Salisbury Road, Andover, SP11 

7NX,  ABBOTTS ANN  
 PROPOSAL Demolish existing buildings and erect 3 detached and 

2 semi-detached bungalows with parking 
 AMENDMENTS Amended Site/Block/Street Scene Plan received 

29.04.2022 
Amended Site/Block/Street Scene Plan received 
25.05.2022 

 CASE OFFICER Samantha Owen 
  

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
 Click here to view application 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
1.1 The application is presented to Northern Area Planning Committee at the 

request of a member. 
 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 The site is 0.22ha in size and is situated adjacent to Salisbury Road in Abbotts 

Ann.  The site is laid to hardstanding and has two buildings; one is used for 
second hand car sales and MOT testing and the other is used as an office.  
There are two metal canopies on site which are used on the car sales forecourt 
to provide shelter and advertise car sales.  There are two access points off 
Salisbury Road into the site. 
 

2.2 To the north-west of the site is Kindersley Park Home consisting of 17 mobile 
homes.  To the south-west and north-east are detached two storey dwellings set 
within generous plots   
 

2.3 Salisbury Road is defined in this location by linear residential development 
along the western side of the road.  The majority of the houses are detached 
and two storey with some bungalows present further to the north-east of the 
site.   

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
3.1 Full planning permission is sought to demolish the existing buildings and erect 3 

detached and 2 semi-detached bungalows with parking in a linear arrangement 
along the site.  A single access/egress point would be created to serve the 
proposed dwellings. 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 56

ITEM 9

https://view-applications.testvalley.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=R999MIQCMSP00


4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 21/01570/FULLN - Demolition of existing buildings and erect 4 detached 

bungalows with parking – Withdrawn 19.07.2021 
 

4.2 20/02655/FULLN - Demolish existing buildings and erect 5 four bedroom 
detached houses with parking and garages – Withdrawn 16.12.2020 
 

4.3 TVN.08063/1 – Outline planning permission sought for the erection of four 
dwellings.  REFUSED. 26.03.2001. 
 

4.4 TVN.08063 – Outline planning permission sought for the erection of four 
dwellings.  REFUSED. 23.11.2000. 

 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Planning Policy: No objection 

Within settlement boundary so principle of development is agreed.  Policy LE10 
seeks the Retention of Employment Land and a Marketing Report has been 
submitted that shows the extent of marketing did not result in any deliverable 
interest.  Consideration of criterion (b) and (c) of LE10 also relevant. 
Development needs to accord with all relevant policies of the RLP. 
 

5.2 Landscape: Comment 
Sufficient space to the front of development to plant trees and a hedge with 
fence behind.  Query the need for the fence as a hedge would create a softer 
frontage.  (Officer Note Amended plans received 25th May removing front 
boundary fence from scheme). This frontage landscaping will compensate for 
lack of ability to provide hedge divisions to the rear gardens.  Consideration 
needs to be given to how this frontage would be maintained i.e. by individual 
plot owners of management company.  Consideration should be given to future 
lighting.  Conditions covering landscape specification, maintenance and 
management and a detailed hard and soft planting plan required. 
 

5.3 Trees: No objection 
Submitted with an Arboricultural Impact Assessment.  No on-site trees and 
satisfied that offsite trees can be protected through tree protection conditions.  
Plot 1 would be the closest to off-site trees but satisfied that the garden is of 
sufficient size that these off-site trees would not be under significant pressure 
from pruning or felling. 
 

5.4 Ecology: No objection 
Application submitted with an Ecology Appraisal and Phase 2 Bat Survey, 
satisfied that this represents the current condition of the site.  No bats have 
been observed emerging or re-entering the building during surveys, roosting 
bats are therefore considered unlikely to be impacted by the proposals.  
Suggest an Informative. 
 

 The Ecological appraisal also provides biodiversity enhancements and this 
should be conditioned.  Foraging and commuting bats were seen and as such 
any lighting should conform to best practice guidelines. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 57



5.5 Housing: No objection 
Under COM7, 5 houses would not normally trigger an affordable housing 
requirement but in this application the site area is 0.22ha which would generate 
a requirement. LPA have previously indicated that the site can take no more 
than 5 houses and as such this clarifies that it falls below the number of 
dwellings threshold set out in the Policy.  
 

5.6 Natural England – No objection 
Subject to securing the credits from Roke as set out in the LPA’s Appropriate 
Assessment. 

 
6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 05.07.2022 
6.1 Abbotts Ann Parish Council: No objection 
 
7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 
 

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP) 

COM2 – Settlement hierarchy 
E1 – High quality design 
E2 – Conserving, protecting and enhancing landscape character 
E5 – Biodiversity 
E7 – Water management 
E8 – Pollution 
LHW1 – Public Open Space 
LHW4 – Amenity 
T1 – Highways 
T2 – Parking 
 

7.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) 

Abbotts Ann Village Design Statement (2000) 

TVBC Affordable Housing SPD (2020) 
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions 

 
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
8.1 The main planning considerations are: 

 Principle of development 

 Character and appearance 

 Trees 

 Amenity 

 Highways and Parking 

 Affordable Housing 

 Water Management 

 Pollution 

 Biodiversity and Nutrient Neutrality 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 58



8.2 Principle of Development 
The site is located within the Abbotts Ann settlement boundary as defined by 
Policy COM2 of the TVBRLP.  Within settlement boundaries the principle of 
development and redevelopment is acceptable provided it accords with other 
policies in the plan. 
 

8.3 The site was occupied by two different companies a second hand car sales 
which no longer operates from the site and new car sales with an element of 
servicing and repairs. This latter business appears to still operate from the site 
but no longer sells new cars and instead does some vehicle repair work.  Car 
sales are a sui generis use and it is considered that the site currently provides 
employment.   
 
Policy LE10 states that on existing employment sites, development for an 
alternative use will be permitted provided that: 
 
a) the land is no longer required to meet the economic development needs of 

the area; or 
b) the current activity is causing, or could cause, significant harm to the 

character of the area or the amenities of residents; and 
c) it would not have a significant detrimental impact on the operation of the 

remaining occupiers of the site. 
 

8.4 The supporting text to Policy LE10 states that the Council will permit other forms 
of development on these sites if it can be demonstrated that they are no longer 
required to meet the economic development needs of the area through, for 
example, market signals.  The supporting text goes on to state that to justify 
this, evidence should be submitted to show that positive marketing of the site 
has been undertaken and proposals for the loss of these sites will need to 
demonstrate the benefits of the proposed use and that the local economy will 
not be harmed.   
 

8.5 The application has been submitted with a Commercial Viability Report.  This 
report details the current poor state of repair of the two buildings on site and in 
particular the building used by William Sawyer, this building has structural 
issues, leaks and has a large amount of asbestos in its construction.  Due to its 
age and construction the building is becoming more difficult to remain and 
repair, the Report concludes that the building is at the end of its economic life 
and would not be an attractive prospect for other users.  The report supports 
this conclusion with photographic evidence of the building failures. 
 

8.6 The Commercial Viability Report also details the Marketing of the site which has 
occurred since late 2019.  Goadsby have been marketing the site since 
September 2021 and have good local market coverage.  The site was 
advertised on an ‘All Enquiries’ basis with ‘price on application’ which is a known 
strategy to encourage the maximum interest in a site.  During the marketing 
period there was only one interest shown and this was tentative and did not 
progress beyond seeking marketing details. 
 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 59



 
8.7 The site is small and located within a residential setting, vehicle access is 

limited and no interest has been shown by any company in taking the site on.  
TVBC has an oversupply of employment land and that this site would no longer 
be required to meet economic needs of the area and as such complies with 
Policy LE10 and COM2. 
  

8.8 Character and Appearance of the Area 
Policy E1 requires development to integrate, respect and complement the 
character of the area whist Policy E2 requires development to protect, 
conserve and enhance the landscape of the Borough. Salisbury Road is 
characterised by a mix of housing types, forms and layout.  The majority of 
dwellings are detached within their own plots, but there are also examples of 
multiple dwellings accessed from one access point.  The boundary treatments 
along the road are a mix of hedging, fencing or a combination of both.  Many of 
the dwellings have mature planting within the front garden areas but again this 
is mixed with some dwellings having very little.   
 

8.9 The site is at present devoid of any landscaping, to the rear the park home site 
has a backdrop of landscaping along its rear boundary and this is visible from 
the site, to the north and south are neighbouring residential dwellings and 
these have a mix of landscaping which provides good screening. 
 

8.10 The proposed development of five bungalows would be located slightly further 
forward than other development in the area due to the restricted depth of the 
site.  Amended plans received on the 25th May 2022 removed the proposed 
front boundary fence and this boundary is now a hedge with tree planting.  The 
indicative landscape plan shows that there is space to create hedge and tree 
planting along the front boundary as well as maintain space for parking and 
manoeuvring.  This proposed new landscaping would soften the site and would 
not be dis-similar to some of the other boundary treatments along this part of 
Salisbury Road.  The single storey nature of the proposed built form would 
enable views of the verdant wooded backdrop beyond the site to be 
appreciated when the site is viewed from Salisbury Road. 
 

8.11 It is considered that the redevelopment of the site for four bungalows would 
create a development where there is sufficient space for landscaping to be 
delivered on site to enable the proposal to integrate with the verdant landscape 
character of the area.  Securing a scheme for the long term management and 
maintenance of any hard and soft landscaping in addition to a detailed 
landscaping and planting scheme could be secured via condition.  The 
proposal would not result in a detrimental impact on the landscape character of 
the area and the proposed landscaping would enable the proposal to positively 
integrate into its surroundings.  The proposal complies with Policy E2 a) and c) 
of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.12 Whilst neighbouring development is two storey in nature there are examples 
along Salisbury Road of bungalows to the north of the application site.  In 
addition, Kindersley Park is single storey in nature and consideration has been 
given during the design of the proposal to how built form would integrate within 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 60



 
this context.  It is considered that a single storey approach to new residential 
development on this site is an acceptable form of development which would 
ensure that the dwellings, given their position forward of the building line, 
would not appear dominant in the street scene.   
 

8.13 A mixture of red brick, clay tiles, slate roof tiles and hanging tiles are proposed 
to reflect the diversity of materials used in built form within the vicinity of the 
site.  The dwellings proposed have a degree of uniformity but there are also 
subtle differences between designs to provide architectural interest to each 
property.  The design and proposed materials are considered acceptable, 
subject to a condition in respect of samples and details of the materials to be 
used in the construction of all external surfaces.     
 

8.14 The proposal is considered to integrate, respect and complement the character 
of the area in terms of its layout, appearance, scale, materials and buildings 
styles and makes efficient use of the land whilst respecting the character of 
surrounding and neighbouring uses.  The redevelopment of the site as 
proposed would improve the character and quality of the area.  The proposal 
thereby complies with Policy E1 of the TVBRLP.   
 

8.15 Trees 
Policy E2 requires development to ensure the health and retention of important 
landscape features.  There are offsite trees adjacent to the northern and 
southern site boundaries which are mature and contribute to the landscape 
character of the area.  An arboricultural impact assessment and method 
statement has been submitted with the application which demonstrates how 
these trees will be protected during the construction and occupation of the 
development.  The Tree Officer is satisfied that, subject to the imposition 
conditions in respect of tree protection during construction, that the proposal 
would not result in a detrimental impact on off-site trees.  The proposal 
therefore complies with Policy E2 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.16 Amenity 
Policy LHW4 of the TVBRLP requires development to provide for the privacy 
and amenity of its occupants and those of neighbouring properties, provide 
private open space and not reduce levels of daylight and sunlight reaching new 
and existing properties to below acceptable levels.  The nearest residential 
properties to consider are no’s 15, 16, 17 and 18 at Kindersley Park, Robins to 
the south-west and Ferndale to the north-east. 
 

8.17 Proposed properties 1 and 2 are located 11m from the rear of park homes 17 
and 18.  Properties 3, 4 and 5 are located 23m and 21m away from the rear of 
park homes 15 and 16 respectively.  The back to back distances for properties 
3 and 4 and park homes 15 and 16 is considered sufficient to ensure that the 
proposal is not overbearing to no’s 15 and 16 or result in reduce levels of 
privacy for future occupiers or neighbours with regards to overlooking. 
 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 61



 
8.18 Whilst the back to back distances between properties 1 and 2 and park homes 

17 and 18 is smaller, given the single storey nature of both dwellings it is 
considered that there will be no opportunities for overlooking.  Further, the 
height of bungalows 1 and 2 is 5.3m and the distance of 11m is considered 
sufficient to not result in a feeling of overbearing within the internal and 
external living spaces of park homes 17 and 18.   
 

8.19 The property known as Robins is set further back from Salisbury Road than 
proposed property 5.  This property has one window at first floor which is set 
back from the boundary with the access road and is partially careened from 
number 5 by its own two storey gable which is immediately adjacent to the 
access road to Kindersley Park.  The result of this is that the window only has 
a view across the western aspect of the proposed garden. The property had 
planning permission in 2014 and the floor plans show that this first floor 
window serves a bathroom.  This is not considered a habitable room and 
would afford limited views across the site.  Due to the location of the window 
and the use of the room it is considered that the limited view would not give 
rise to unacceptable overlooking of proposed dwelling number 5. 

 

8.20 Proposed property 1 would be the nearest neighbour to the property known as 
Ferndale to the north-east of the site.  The distance between the proposed 
property and Ferndale is approximately 12 metres.  In addition, there is a 
mature hedgerow between these properties which has an element of 
evergreen species within it.  The separation distance and mature hedgerow is 
considered sufficient to ensure that the amenity of both properties would be 
provided for in respect of privacy. 
 

8.21 The garden sizes vary for proposed properties 1-5.  Properties 1 and 2 have 
gardens which measure approximately 15/16m x 8m, property 3 has a garden 
measuring 8m x 14m,  property 4 approximately 13m x 11m and property 5  a 
garden measuring 12m x 11m.  It is considered that the garden space 
proposed for each of the properties is sufficient for the proposed properties 
and would provide for the amenity of future occupiers.  Due to the layout of the 
Park Homes to the rear if future occupiers were to erect structures within their 
garden these would be in close proximity to these Park Homes, it is considered 
that removing Permitted Development Rights for Class E of the GPDO would 
allow the LPA to have some control over future additions. 
 

8.22 The gardens are north westerly facing.  This would mean that gardens and 
rooms to the rear of the properties would receive a degree of shading within 
the morning but receive sunshine in the afternoon.  It is considered that this 
arrangement is acceptable and would allow for adequate amounts of daylight 
and sunlight to reach the garden and primary living spaces located towards the 
rear of the proposed properties. 

8.23 Having regard to the height and location of the existing built form and 
structures on site relative to neighbouring properties and the single storey 
nature of the proposed dwellings it is not considered that there would be any 
detrimental impact on neighbouring properties in respect of loss of sunlight, 
daylight or shadowing from the proposal.   
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 62



 
 
8.24 The proposal would provide for the privacy and amenity of its future occupants 

and those of neighbouring properties, would provide sufficient private outside 
amenity space and would not reduce levels of daylight and sunlight reaching 
new and existing properties or private open space to below acceptable levels.  
The proposal is in accordance with Policy LHW4 of the TVBRLP.   
 

8.25 Highways and Parking 
The proposal involves reducing the number of access points into the site from 
two into a single centralised access.  The Highways Officer is satisfied that the 
proposed use would represent a significant decrease in traffic generation to 
that of the current/ previous land use. The Highways Officer considers this to 
be acceptable and are satisfied with the visibility splays as shown. The internal 
layout of the site is considered to be acceptable in providing access for the 
parking, turning and manoeuvring of vehicles in a functional and safe way as 
required by Policy T1.   The Highways Officer has requested a condition 
requiring all existing redundant accesses to be permanently closed and the 
footway reinstated.  The layout of the development is such that this is not 
considered to be an issue as there would be one central access point and 
boundary treatment to all other parts of the boundary.  
 

8.26 The development provides a bin day collection area and it is understood that 
like the other developments along the road, refuse would be collected from the 
road.  The bin day collection area is the same as that shown on the previously 
withdrawn application 21/01570/FULLN which the Council’s Refuse and 
Recycling Service raised no objection to.  It is considered that the proposal will 
not result in a detrimental impact on the function, character and safety of the 
highway network and that the internal layout of the site is accessible for all 
users.  Subject to conditions, the proposal complies with Policy T1 of the 
TVBRLP. 
 

8.27 Annexe G of the TVBRLP requires two and three bedroom properties to have 2 
car parking spaces each.  A development of five dwellings would also require 1 
visitor space.  11 car parking spaces have been provided.   All properties have 
provision for rear access which would allow bikes to be stored to the rear of the 
properties.  The proposal is considered acceptable with regards to Policy T2 of 
the TVBRLP.   
 

8.28 Affordable Housing 
The site is within the Designated Rural Area as defined in Annex 2 of the 
TVBC Affordable Housing SPD (2020).  Policy COM7 of the TVBRLP states: 
 

In the designated Rural Area of a net gain of 6-9 dwellings (or sites 0.22-
0.29ha) a financial contribution equivalent of up to 20%of dwellings to be 
affordable. 
 

As the site is for 5 dwellings it would not trigger the requirement for affordable 
housing, but in this case it is within the site area equivalent threshold, with a 
 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 63



size of 0.22ha as stipulated in the Policy.  These site thresholds are there to 
ensure that an applicant does not deliberately reduce the numbers of dwellings 
on site to avoid the need for affordable housing as the 0.22ha is of sufficient 
size to support 6 dwellings.   The SPD however does acknowledge that these 
site thresholds are only relevant where the site could reasonably 
accommodate a higher number of dwellings than the number being proposed.  
This application has been through a number of iterations and what is clear that 
the site cannot support more than 5 dwellings without having an unacceptable 
effect on the character and appearance of the area as there is insufficient room 
to accommodate the necessary parking or provide adequate landscaping for a 
higher number of units than proposed. 
 

8.29 In light of the limitations of the site and the form of the proposal the Housing 
Officer is satisfied that no affordable housing is required at this site and as 
such the application accords with Policy COM7 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.30 Water Management 
The site is in Flood Zone 1 and as such a flood risk assessment is not 
required.  The site is also not within a ground water protection zone.  The 
redevelopment of the site will result in a significant reduction in hardstanding 
within the site and the creation of landscaped areas which will improve water 
management and drainage within the site.  Policy E7 of the TVBRLP requires 
that all new homes achieve a water consumption standards of no more than 
110 litres per person per day and this can be secured via condition.  The 
proposal complies with Policy E7 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.31 Pollution 
The new dwellings are proposed to be located adjacent to Salisbury Road and 
forward of the residential building line.  On the previously Withdrawn 
application (21/01570/FULLN) the Environmental Protection Officer (EPO) 
raised that there is potential for significant traffic noise from this road on the 
internal living rooms on the principal facade without noise mitigation measures.  
The EPO advised that this will not be a constraint on the proposed 
development provided adequate sound insulation is incorporated into the 
design of the properties to protect the amenity of future occupants and that this 
can be secured via condition.  Additional conditions in respect of construction 
hours and contamination have also been recommended.  Subject to these 
conditions, the proposal would not result in pollution which would cause 
unacceptable risks to human health or general amenity as required by Policy 
E8 of the TVBRLP.   

 
8.32 Ecology 

Policy E5 of the TVBRLP seeks to ensure that development does not 
adversely affect biodiversity.  Policy E5 also states that development that is 
likely to result in a significant effect, either alone or in combination, on an 
international or European nature conservation designation will need to satisfy 
the requirements of sections 61 and 62 of the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010 (as amended). 
 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 64



8.33 The application was supported by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and a 
Phase 2 Bat Survey and the Ecologist is satisfied that the survey represents 
the current condition of the site.  No bats were observed emerging or re-
entering the building during these surveys and roosting bats were therefore 
considered unlikely to be impacted by the proposals.  The Ecologist has 
suggested conditions to cover lighting and an informative on Bats.  
 

8.34 The Ecological Appraisal suggests biodiversity enhancements across the site 
and the Ecologist has recommended that this is secured by condition. 
 

8.35 In June 2019 Natural England published guidance which required all new 
developments providing overnight accommodation to demonstrate nutrient 
neutrality.  This guidance was updated in March 2022.  The guidance stated 
that there is evidence that high levels of nitrates from new housing 
development that results in waste water entering The Solent is contributing 
towards eutrophication of internationally legally protected sites in the Solent 
and resulting in a detrimental impact upon the conservation interest of these 
sites.   
 

8.36 Advice from Natural England is that the applicants for development proposals 
resulting in a net increase in dwellings are required to submit a nitrogen budget 
for the development to demonstrate that there will be no likely significant effect 
on these internationally designated sites.  The requirement to demonstrate no 
likely significant effect is outlined within Regulation 63 of the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations (2017).   
 

8.37 To identify the amount of nitrate loading generated by the proposed 
development, a nutrient budget calculation has been undertaken in accordance 
with Natural England’s standard methodology and calculator spreadsheet. The 
calculation identifies that the proposed development will generate 
18.63kg/TN/yr. 
 

8.38 To address this issue, Test Valley Borough Council has implemented a 
strategic nitrate offsetting mitigation scheme whereby a scale of developer 
contributions has been agreed that would fund its ongoing delivery of a nitrate 
offsetting scheme. This strategic scheme comprises the offsetting of 
agricultural land previously utilised for the purposes of pig farming, located at 
Roke, Awbridge. 

 

8.39 An appropriate assessment has been carried out and this has been reviewed 
by Natural England. It is concluded that the development can achieve nutrient 
neutrality by offsetting the increase in the nitrogen load and this would need to 
be secured through a S106 which is currently in progress.  The development 
would therefore not result in an adverse effect on the integrity of the Solent 
designated sites through water quality from nitrate impacts and would accord 
with Policy E5 of the TVBRLP. 

 

9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 The proposed development is considered acceptable in principle and is also 

acceptable in terms of character and appearance, trees, amenity, highways 
and parking, affordable housing, water management, pollution and biodiversity. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 65



10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 Delegate to the Head of Planning and Building that subject to the 

completion of a satisfactory legal agreement to secure mitigation land to 
offset the nitrogen load of the development, then PERMISSION subject to: 

 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 
years from the date of this permission. 
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 
complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers 9377/501; 9377/502; 9377;503; 9377/504; 9377/506; 
9377/500A. 
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 3. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in full 
accordance with the provisions set out within the Barrell Treecare 
Arboricultural Impact Appraisal and Method Statement reference 
20239-AA2-DC dated 23rd March 2022 and its associated tree 
protection plan. 
Reason:  To ensure the enhancement of the development by the 
retention of existing trees and natural features during the 
construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan policy E2. 

 4. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces 
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
Reason:  To ensure the development has a satisfactory external 
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1. 

 5. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced details, 
including plans and cross sections, shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority of the existing and 
proposed ground levels of the development and the boundaries of 
the site and the height of the ground floor slab and damp proof 
course in relation thereto. Development shall be undertaken in 
accordance with the approved details. 
Reason:  To ensure satisfactory relationship between the new 
development and the adjacent buildings, amenity areas and trees in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E1. 

 6. Prior to construction of the proposed residential development, a 
scheme for insulating the occupants against road traffic noise shall 
be submitted for approval by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
scheme shall include an environmental noise survey and the 
necessary mitigation (including mechanical ventilation in 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 66



circumstances where the following standards will not be met with 
windows open) to demonstrate that the following is achieved: 
 
 07:00 to 23:00 23:00 to 07:00 

Bedrooms 35 dB LAeq, 16 hour 30 dB LAeq, 8 hour 
45 dB LAmax,F exceeded not more than 10 times a night 
External amenity areas 50 dB LAeq, 16 hour 
 

The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to first occupation 
of the proposed development and shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason:  In the interest of the amenities of occupiers in accordance 
with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E8. 

 7. No development shall take place (other than any approved 
demolition and site clearance works) until an assessment of the 
nature and extent of any contamination and a scheme for 
remediating the contamination has been submitted to an approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The assessment must be 
undertaken by a competent person and shall assess the presence of 
any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the 
site.  In accordance with the Ground and Water Ltd Phase 1 Desk 
Study report dated October 2020 which accompanied the planning 
application, the assessment shall comprise a site investigation in 
accordance with the recommendations of that report.  In the event 
that contamination is found or is considered likely the scheme shall 
contain remediation proposal designed to bring the site to a 
condition suitable for the intended use.  Such remediation 
proposals shall include clear remediation objectives and criteria, an 
appraisal of the remediation options and the arrangements for the 
supervision of remediation works by a competent person.  Should 
additional (i.e. previously unidentified) contamination be found 
during development works after the remediation scheme has been 
agreed and which was no anticipated as part of the approved 
remediation scheme with suitable remediation arrangements in 
place, then additional remediation proposals shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The site 
shall not be brought into use until a verification report for the 
purpose of certifying adherence to the approved remediation 
scheme and documenting how any previously unidentified 
contamination has been dealt with has been submitted to an 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason:  To ensure a safe living/working environment in 
accordance with Policy E8 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan. 

 8. Tree protective measures installed (in accordance with the tree 
protection condition) shall be maintained and retained for the full 
duration of works or until such time as agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority. No activities, nor material storage, nor 
placement of site huts or other equipment what-so-ever shall take 
place within the barrier. 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 67



Reason:  To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2. 

 9. Prior to commencement, a detailed scheme of biodiversity 
enhancements to be incorporated into the development shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. These measures should be in accordance with section 5.0 
‘Requirements and Recommendations’ in the William Sawyers 
Subaru & Pinchbecks Garages, Old Salisbury Road, Little Ann, 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and Phase 2 Bat Survey (Peach 
Ecology, July 2021). Development shall subsequently proceed in 
accordance with any such approved details, with photographic 
evidence provided to the Local Planning Authority within 6 months 
of occupation.  
Reason:  To enhance biodiversity in accordance with NPPF and the 
Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 and with 
Policy E5 of the Test Valley Revised Local Plan DPD 2011-2029. 

 10. Prior to commencement on site a scheme shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority detailing the 
method of cleaning wheels and chassis of all HGV’s, plant and 
delivery vehicles leaving the site and the means of keeping the site 
access road and adjacent public highway clear of mud and debris 
during site demolition, excavation and construction.  The scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and 
shall be installed and operational before any development 
commences and retained in working order throughout the duration 
of the development.  No vehicles shall leave the site in a condition 
whereby, mud clay or other deleterious materials shall be deposited 
on the public highway. 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and to accord with Policy 
T1 of the Test valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 11. All service routes, drain runs, soakaways or excavations in 
connection with the development hereby permitted shall remain 
wholly outside the tree protective barrier. 
Reason: To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2. 

 12. No development shall take place (including any works of demolition) 
until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the LPA.  The approved statement shall 
include scaled drawings illustrating the provision for:- 

 The parking of site operatives and visitor vehicles 

 Loading and unloading of plant and materials 

 Management of construction traffic and access routes 

 Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development 

 Vehicle tracking in regard to points above. 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and to accord with Policy 
T1 of the Test valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 68



 
 13. The development shall not be brought into use until vehicular 

visibility splays as indicated on drawing number 9377/500 Rev B in 
which there should be no obstruction to visibility exceeding 1 metre 
in height above the adjacent carriageway channel line have been 
completed.  Such visibility splays shall thereafter be retained for the 
lifetime of the development. 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and to accord with Policy 
T1 of the Test valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016. 

 14. The development shall not be occupied until space has been laid 
out and provided for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles to 
enable them to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in 
accordance with the approved plan and this space shall thereafter 
be reserved for such purposes at all times. 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1 

 15. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until full details of hard and soft 
landscape works have been submitted and approved. Details shall 
include; 

 means of enclosure 

 planting plans; written specifications (including cultivation 
and other operations associated with plant and grass 
establishment); schedules of plants, noting species, plant 
sizes and proposed numbers/densities. 

The landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
implementation programme and in accordance with the 
management plan. 
Reason:  To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2. 

 16. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until a schedule of landscape 
management and maintenance for a minimum period of 5 years has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The landscape management plan, including long term 
design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance 
schedules for all landscape areas and an implementation 
programme, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved management plan shall be 
carried out in accordance with the implementation programme. 
Reason:  To ensure the provision of amenity afforded by proper 
maintenance of existing and new landscape features as an 
improvement of the appearance of the site and to enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2. 

 
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 69



 17. External lighting will follow best practice guidelines outlined by the 
Bat Conservation Trust and the Institute of Lighting Professionals 
(Guidance note 08/18 Bats and artificial lighting in the UK). Prior to 
commencement, a detailed lighting strategy for the construction and 
operation phase of the development shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development 
shall subsequently proceed in accordance with any such approved 
details, with the approved lighting strategy maintained in perpetuity. 
Reason:  To prevent disturbance to protected species in accordance 
with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy E5 of the 
Revised Test Valley Revised Local Plan. 

 18. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order 
amending, revoking or re-enacting that Order), no building or 
structure, shall be erected without the prior written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
Reason:  In order that the Local Planning Authority can exercise 
control in the locality in the interest of the local amenities in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy. 

 Notes to applicant: 
 1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused 
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a 
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice 
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in 
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions. 

 2. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. All work 
must stop immediately if bats, or evidence of bat presence (e.g. 
droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), are encountered at any 
point during this development. Should this occur, further advice 
should be sought from Natural England and/or a professional 
ecologist. 
 
 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 70



8

7

1

9

The

Garage

R
es

t

Tr
ac

k

Green

Lodge

12

17

14

18

16

Park Homes

Kindersley

Haven

Robins

B
ad

g
er

s

Ferndale

Paddock

Netherdale

Keviston

Virginia

Hillcrest

Timber Tops

Laburnum

Kookaburra

Strathfield

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING

 WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF

 HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT. 

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

N
Siteplan

22/00833/FULLN

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 71



1

2

V

9

1
0

O
N

S
I
T

E
 
T

U
R

N
I
N

G

F
O

R
 
C

A
R

S

B
I
N

 
D

A
Y

C
O

L
L
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
A

R
E

A

N
E

W
 
D

R
O

P
P

E
D

 
K

E
R

B

3

4

5

6

7

8

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
S

T
O

 
B

E
 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

1

2

3

5

4

BATH

LIV
ING 

BED 1

BED 2

BED 3

DINING

UTILI
TY

ES

KITC
HEN

ST

1

ES

BATH

BED 2

BED 1

LIV
ING 

ST

BED 3

DINING

KITC
HEN

UTILI
TY

2

ES

BATH

BED 2

BED 1

LIV
ING 

ST

BED 3

DINING

KITC
HEN

UTILI
TY

3

ST

LIV
ING 

ES

BED 2

BED 1

BATH

KITC
HEN

DINING

ST

LIV
ING 

ES

BED 2

BED 1

BATH

KITC
HEN

DINING

4

5

1
.
8
M

 
H

I
G

H
 
H

E
D

G
E

1
.
8
M

 
H

I
G

H
 
H

E
D

G
E

8

G
a

r
a

g
e

1

8

7

1

7

R
o

b
i
n

s

9

1

2

1

6

1

4

S

a

l

i

s

b

u

r

y

 

R

o

a

d

8

G
a

r
a
g
e

1

8

7

1

7

R
o

b
i
n

s

F
e

r
n

d
a

l
e

9

1

2

1

6

1

4

S

a

l

i

s

b

u

r

y

 

R

o

a

d

1
0

m
 @

 1
:1

0
0

93
77

/5
00

A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 @
 A

1

M
A

RC
H 

20
22

Re
vi

sio
n.

N
o.

by
d

at
e

d
at

e

sc
al

e

d
ra

w
n

ch
ec

ke
d

G
R

SI
TE

, B
LO

C
K,

 L
O

C
A

TIO
N

 P
LA

N
&

 S
TR

EE
T 

SC
EN

E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

W
IL

LI
A

M
S 

G
A

RA
G

E,
SA

LI
SB

UR
Y 

RO
A

D
,

A
N

D
O

V
ER

,
SP

11
 7

N
S.

SI
TE

 A
RE

A
: 0

.2
2 

HE
C

TA
RE

S 
/ 

0.
56

 A
C

RE
S

SC
HE

D
UL

E
3 

X 
3 

BE
D

 D
ET

A
C

HE
D

 B
UN

G
A

LO
W

S
2 

X 
2 

BE
D

 S
EM

I D
ET

A
C

HE
D

 B
UN

G
A

LO
W

S
TO

TA
L 

5 
UN

ITS

G
IA

 =
 4

57
.8

 S
Q

.M

10
 X

 P
A

RK
IN

G
 S

PA
C

ES
 +

 1
 X

 V
IS

ITO
R 

SP
A

C
ES

SI
TE

 B
O

UN
D

A
RY

A
R

C
 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
u

r
e

 
l
t
d

.

C
h
a

p
e
l
 
S

t
u
d
i
o

s
,
 
1
4

 
P

u
r
e

w
e

l
l
,

T
e

l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
+

4
4

 
(
0

 
)
1

2
0

2
 
4

7
9

9
1

9

C
h
r
i
s
t
c
h

u
r
c
h
,
 
D

o
r
s
e
t
,
 
B

H
2

3
 
1

E
P

E
-
m

a
i
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
n
q
u
i
r
i
e
s
@

a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

W
e
b
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
w

w
w

.
a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

LE
G

E
N

D
 

EX
IS

TIN
G

 B
UI

LD
IN

G
S 

&
 S

TR
UC

TU
RE

S
TO

 B
E 

D
EM

O
LI

SH
ED

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
BA

SE
D

 O
N

 T
O

PO
 IN

FO
RM

A
TIO

N
SC

A
LE

 1
:2

00

BL
O

C
K 

PL
A

N
BA

SE
D

 O
N

  O
.S

 IN
FO

RM
A

TIO
N

SC
A

LE
 1

:5
00

O
.S

 L
IC

EN
C

E 
N

UM
BE

R 
10

00
07

08
0

LO
C

A
TIO

N
 P

LA
N

BA
SE

D
 O

N
  O

.S
 IN

FO
RM

A
TIO

N
SC

A
LE

 1
:1

25
0

O
.S

 L
IC

EN
C

E 
N

UM
BE

R 
10

00
07

08
0

N
ot

e:
 A

ny
 d

es
ig

n 
or

 d
et

ai
ls

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
de

r P
ar

t B
 o

f t
he

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 is

 sh
ow

n 
fo

r i
nd

ic
at

iv
e/

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y 
an

d 
is

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l i
np

ut
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 a
cc

ep
te

d.

ST
RE

ET
 S

C
EN

E 
SC

A
LE

 1
:2

00
FO

R 
IL

LU
ST

RA
TE

 P
UR

PO
SE

D
 O

N
LY

N
O

TE
S-

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
1.

 T
he

 c
on

te
nt

s o
f t

hi
s d

ra
w

in
g 

ar
e 

co
py

rig
ht

.
2.

 P
la

nn
in

g 
d

ra
w

in
gs

 a
re

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

 &
 n

o 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 B
ui

ld
in

g
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
as

su
m

ed
.

3.
 D

o 
no

t s
ca

le
. F

ig
ur

ed
 d

im
en

sio
ns

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

.  
   

4.
 C

on
tra

ct
or

s m
us

t v
er

ify
 a

ll d
im

en
sio

ns
 a

nd
 re

po
rt 

an
y 

d
isc

re
pa

nc
ie

s b
ef

or
e 

pu
tti

ng
 w

or
k 

in
 h

an
d

 o
r

 m
ak

in
g 

an
y 

sh
op

 d
ra

w
in

gs
.

5.
 A

ll f
la

t r
oo

fs
 to

 b
e 

fit
te

d
 w

ith
 a

 m
an

 sa
fe

 sy
st

em
 to

 sa
tis

fy
 C

D
M

 2
01

5 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 u
nl

es
s w

rit
te

n
 c

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

fro
m

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
D

es
ig

ne
r/

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 is
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 to
 sh

ow
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

so
ug

ht
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

.
6.

 S
ta

ir 
d

es
ig

n 
to

 b
e 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

tly
 c

he
ck

ed
 b

y 
st

ai
r f

ab
ric

at
or

 fo
r r

eg
s. 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d

 si
zin

g,
 p

rio
r t

o
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n/

 o
rd

er
in

g.
 D

im
en

sio
ns

 to
 b

e 
ch

ec
ke

d
 b

ef
or

e 
fa

br
ic

at
io

n.
7.

 M
ac

le
nn

an
 w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 (o

r s
im

ila
r c

om
pa

ny
 w

ith
 re

le
va

nt
 P

I i
ns

ur
an

ce
) t

o 
be

 in
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

nd
d

et
ai

l a
ll b

as
em

en
t w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

d
es

ig
ns

. -
 A

RC
 c

ar
ry

 n
o 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

or
 P

I c
ov

er
 fo

r b
as

em
en

t d
es

ig
ns

 in
te

rm
s o

f w
at

er
pr

oo
fin

g 
or

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

.
8.

 A
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t s
ho

ul
d

 fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 d

ra
w

in
g 

pa
ck

ag
e,

 if
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

no
t r

ec
ei

ve
d

 th
is

fro
m

 u
s b

y 
po

st
, e

m
ai

l o
r c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
pl

ea
se

 c
on

ta
ct

 u
s f

or
 a

 c
op

y 
be

fo
re

 m
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

9.
 W

e 
ta

ke
 n

o 
re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
fo

r t
he

 d
ep

ic
te

d
 si

te
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
bo

un
d

ar
y.

 C
lie

nt
s m

us
t n

ot
ify

 u
s i

f t
he

y 
fe

el
 th

e
ou

r p
la

ns
 d

o 
no

t a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

d
ep

ic
t t

he
ir 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
or

 a
re

a 
of

 c
on

tro
l f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

.
10

. W
e 

d
o 

no
t t

ak
e 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

fo
r m

ee
tin

g 
m

in
im

um
 sp

ac
e 

as
 se

to
ut

 in
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t T
ec

hn
ic

al
 h

ou
sin

g
st

an
d

ar
d

s -
 n

at
io

na
lly

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 sp

ac
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
s d

oc
um

en
t.

11
. A

ll C
la

d
d

in
g 

&
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

at
ta

ch
m

en
ts

 e
xt

er
na

lly
 to

 b
e 

al
l A

1 
fir

e 
ra

te
d

.
FI

RE
: W

e 
d

o 
N

O
T 

ta
ke

 a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

an
d

 d
o 

no
t c

ar
ry

 a
ny

 P
I c

ov
er

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 a
ny

 m
at

te
rs

 re
la

tin
g 

to
fir

e 
sa

fe
ty

, P
ar

t B
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, B

S 
99

91
 fo

r f
ire

 o
r E

W
S1

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 n
o 

w
ay

 fo
rm

 a
 fi

re
 st

ra
te

gy
/

re
po

rt.
 A

ll d
es

ig
n/

 d
et

ai
ls 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r i

nd
ic

at
iv

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

nl
y 

an
d

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ad
 in

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
te

st
 v

er
sio

n 
of

 th
e 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 F

ire
 C

on
su

lta
nt

 F
ire

 S
tra

te
gy

 D
oc

um
en

t/
 R

ep
or

t -
 a

ll
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d

 in
 su

ch
 a

 re
po

rt 
su

pe
rs

ed
es

 A
RC

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 a
ll a

sp
ec

ts
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

is 
ac

ce
pt

ed
. I

f y
ou

 a
re

 u
na

w
ar

e 
w

ho
 th

e 
ap

po
in

te
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 is

 o
r d

on
't 

ha
ve

 a
 c

op
y 

of
th

e 
la

te
st

 v
er

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
re

po
rt 

pl
ea

se
 c

on
ta

ct
 a

rc
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.
EW

S1
: a

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 q

ua
lif

ie
d

 a
nd

 in
su

re
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
/e

ng
in

ee
r s

ho
ul

d
 b

e
ap

po
in

te
d

 b
y 

th
e 

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
fin

ish
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

. S
om

e 
m

or
tg

ag
e 

co
m

pa
ni

es
re

qu
ire

 E
W

S1
's 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
ut

sid
e 

of
 th

e 
EW

S1
 st

an
d

ar
d

 c
rit

er
ia

.
Pa

rt 
B 

&
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y:
 A

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d
 fi

re
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 a
t t

he
 e

ar
lie

st
 p

os
sib

le
 p

oi
nt

 in
 th

e 
d

es
ig

n 
pr

oc
es

s t
o 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t B

 &
 F

ire
sa

fe
ty

. P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

fir
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s c

on
fir

m
at

io
n/

in
pu

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

in
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d

in
 so

m
e 

or
 a

ll a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g;
 1

) S
pr

in
kl

er
 sy

st
em

s 2
) M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l s
m

ok
e 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
 3

) F
ixe

d
 sh

ut
 fi

re
sa

fe
ty

 g
la

ss
 4

) p
la

n 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 fi

re
 sa

fe
ty

 c
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 lo

ss
 o

f s
al

ab
le

 fl
oo

r a
re

a 
an

d
 p

ot
en

tia
l

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 a

d
d

iti
on

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. (
th

is 
lis

t i
s n

ot
 e

xh
au

st
iv

e)

re
v-

08
-1

0-
21

PA
RK

IN
G

 R
EV

IS
ED

A
G

R
29

/0
4/

22

A

FR
O

N
T 

BO
UN

D
A

RY
 R

EV
IS

ED
B

G
R

26
/0

5/
22

B

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 72

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
16.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
18.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
16.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
16.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
16.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
16.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
16.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
16.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
16.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
16.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
16.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
16.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
16.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
18.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
16.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
16.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
16.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
16.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
16.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
16.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
16.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
15.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
16.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
15.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
16.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
16.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
16.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
16.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
16.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
16.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
16.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
16.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
16.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
16.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
16.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
16.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
16.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
17.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
16.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
16.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
Gully

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
17.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
17.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
16.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
16.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
16.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
18.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
18.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
18.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
18.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
16.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
16.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
16.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
16.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
16.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
16.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
16.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
16.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
16.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
16.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
16.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
16.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
16.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
16.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
17.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
16.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
16.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
16.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
16.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
17.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
16.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
16.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
17.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
16.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
16.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
17.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
17.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
22.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
21.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
16.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
16.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
16.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
16.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
16.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
15.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
16.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
16.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
18.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
18.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
18.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
16.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
16.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
16.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
16.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
16.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
16.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
16.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
16.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
16.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
16.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
16.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
18.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
16.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
16.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
16.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
16.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
18.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
18.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
16.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
16.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
16.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
16.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
16.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
16.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
16.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
16.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
16.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
16.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
16.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
16.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
16.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
16.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
16.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
16.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
16.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
16.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
16.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
16.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
16.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
18.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
16.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
16.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
16.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
16.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
16.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
16.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
16.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
16.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
16.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
16.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
16.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
16.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
18.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
18.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
16.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
16.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
16.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
16.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
16.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
16.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
16.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
18.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
17.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
18.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
16.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
16.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
16.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
16.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
16.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
16.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
16.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
16.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
16.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
16.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
17.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
16.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
16.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
17.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
16.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
16.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
16.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
16.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
16.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
17.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
TIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
16.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
16.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
16.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
16.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
16.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
16.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
16.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
16.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
16.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
16.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
16.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
16.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
16.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
16.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
16.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
16.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
16.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
16.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
16.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
16.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
16.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
16.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
16.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
16.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
16.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
16.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
16.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
16.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
16.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
16.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
16.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
16.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
16.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Dr

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
16.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
16.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
16.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
16.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
16.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
16.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
16.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
16.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
16.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
16.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
16.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
16.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
16.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
16.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
16.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
16.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
16.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
16.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
16.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
16.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
16.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
16.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
16.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
16.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
16.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
16.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
16.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
16.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
16.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
16.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
16.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
16.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
16.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
16.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
16.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
16.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
16.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
16.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
16.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
16.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
16.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
16.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
18.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
18.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
18.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
18.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
16.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
16.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
16.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
23.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
22.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
23.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
16.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
16.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
16.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
16.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
15.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
16.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
16.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
16.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
16.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
16.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
16.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
Bollard

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
16.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
16.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
16.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
16.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
16.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
16.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
16.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
16.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
16.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
18.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
21.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
16.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
16.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
Gully

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
Dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
St.Wire

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
Stn.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
Dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
Dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
Stn.3

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
PTF

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
PTF

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
PTF

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
PTF

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
PTF

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
PTF

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
PTF

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
PTF

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
Gully

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
Dk

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
Dr

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
Stn.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
Stn.Z

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
Th.L.16.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
Stn.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
Field

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
To

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
KINDERSLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
HOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
Cypress

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
Screen

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
Eave.19.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
Eave.21.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
Eave.19.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
Ridge.19.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Ridge.19.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
Eave.19.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
Eave.19.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
Ridge.19.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
Ridge.24.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
Eave.20.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
Fl.R.21.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
Roof.23.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
Fl.R.19.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
Eave.18.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
Ridge.18.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
Shed

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
U/S20.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
Top.21.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
Roof.23.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
16.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
16.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
16.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
ROBINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
ROBINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
To

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
Tarmac Footpath

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
Tarmac Footpath

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
Tarmac Footpath

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
Grass Verge

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
RW

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
Concrete

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
Pav.

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
Conc.

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
Access

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
To

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
FERNDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
Box

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
Hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
CBF

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
Scrub

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
Tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
Drainage

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
Channel

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
18.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
Conc.



1
0

m
 @

 1
:1

0
0

BA
TH

LI
V

IN
G

 

BE
D

 1

BE
D

 2

BE
D

 3

D
IN

IN
G

UT
IL

ITY

ES

KI
TC

HE
N

ST

1

93
77

/5
01

A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 @
 A

1

M
A

RC
H 

20
22

Re
vi

sio
n.

N
o.

by
d

at
e

d
at

e

sc
al

e

d
ra

w
n

ch
ec

ke
d

G
R

PL
A

N
S 

&
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
S

PL
O

T 
1

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

W
IL

LI
A

M
S 

G
A

RA
G

E,
SA

LI
SB

UR
Y 

RO
A

D
,

A
N

D
O

V
ER

,
SP

11
 7

N
S.

PL
O

T 
1 

- 3
 B

ED
RO

O
M

 B
UN

G
A

LO
W

 @
 1

02
 S

Q
.M

 /
 1

09
7 

SQ
.F

T

A
R

C
 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
u

r
e

 
l
t
d

.

C
h
a

p
e
l
 
S

t
u
d
i
o

s
,
 
1
4

 
P

u
r
e

w
e

l
l
,

T
e

l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
+

4
4

 
(
0

 
)
1

2
0

2
 
4

7
9

9
1

9

C
h
r
i
s
t
c
h

u
r
c
h
,
 
D

o
r
s
e
t
,
 
B

H
2

3
 
1

E
P

E
-
m

a
i
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
n
q
u
i
r
i
e
s
@

a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

W
e
b
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
w

w
w

.
a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

M
A

TE
RI

A
LS

 S
C

HE
DU

LE
:

C
LA

Y 
EF

FE
C

T 
TIL

ES
RO

O
F:

-

.T
BC

W
IN

D
O

W
S 

&
 D

O
O

RS
:-

.R
ED

 B
RI

C
K 

/ 
TIL

E 
HA

N
G

IN
G

EX
TE

RN
A

L 
W

A
LL

S:
-

N
ot

e:
 A

ll 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 b

y 
fir

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 p
rio

r t
o 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n.

 T
he

ab
ov

e 
m

at
er

ia
l c

ho
ic

es
 a

re
 fo

r p
la

nn
in

g/
ae

st
he

tic
 p

ur
po

se
s o

nl
y 

an
d 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n

of
 fi

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 sh

ou
ld

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 sp
ec

ia
lis

t. 
(fi

xi
ng

 sy
st

em
 b

eh
in

d 
cl

ad
di

ng
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 n
on

 c
om

bu
st

ib
le

 A
1 

or
 A

2 
ra

te
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 fi

re
 c

on
su

lta
nt

)

N
ot

e:
 A

ny
 d

es
ig

n 
or

 d
et

ai
ls

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
de

r P
ar

t B
 o

f t
he

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 is

 sh
ow

n 
fo

r i
nd

ic
at

iv
e/

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y 
an

d 
is

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l i
np

ut
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 a
cc

ep
te

d.

SO
UT

H 
EA

ST
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

N
O

RT
H 

EA
ST

 E
LE

V
A

TIO
N

1:
10

0
N

O
RT

H 
W

ES
T 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

SO
UT

H 
W

ES
T 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

PL
A

N
1:

50
RO

O
F 

PL
A

N
1:

50

N
O

TE
S-

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
1.

 T
he

 c
on

te
nt

s o
f t

hi
s d

ra
w

in
g 

ar
e 

co
py

rig
ht

.
2.

 P
la

nn
in

g 
d

ra
w

in
gs

 a
re

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

 &
 n

o 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 B
ui

ld
in

g
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
as

su
m

ed
.

3.
 D

o 
no

t s
ca

le
. F

ig
ur

ed
 d

im
en

sio
ns

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

.  
   

4.
 C

on
tra

ct
or

s m
us

t v
er

ify
 a

ll d
im

en
sio

ns
 a

nd
 re

po
rt 

an
y 

d
isc

re
pa

nc
ie

s b
ef

or
e 

pu
tti

ng
 w

or
k 

in
 h

an
d

 o
r

 m
ak

in
g 

an
y 

sh
op

 d
ra

w
in

gs
.

5.
 A

ll f
la

t r
oo

fs
 to

 b
e 

fit
te

d
 w

ith
 a

 m
an

 sa
fe

 sy
st

em
 to

 sa
tis

fy
 C

D
M

 2
01

5 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 u
nl

es
s w

rit
te

n
 c

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

fro
m

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
D

es
ig

ne
r/

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 is
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 to
 sh

ow
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

so
ug

ht
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

.
6.

 S
ta

ir 
d

es
ig

n 
to

 b
e 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

tly
 c

he
ck

ed
 b

y 
st

ai
r f

ab
ric

at
or

 fo
r r

eg
s. 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d

 si
zin

g,
 p

rio
r t

o
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n/

 o
rd

er
in

g.
 D

im
en

sio
ns

 to
 b

e 
ch

ec
ke

d
 b

ef
or

e 
fa

br
ic

at
io

n.
7.

 M
ac

le
nn

an
 w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 (o

r s
im

ila
r c

om
pa

ny
 w

ith
 re

le
va

nt
 P

I i
ns

ur
an

ce
) t

o 
be

 in
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

nd
d

et
ai

l a
ll b

as
em

en
t w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

d
es

ig
ns

. -
 A

RC
 c

ar
ry

 n
o 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

or
 P

I c
ov

er
 fo

r b
as

em
en

t d
es

ig
ns

 in
te

rm
s o

f w
at

er
pr

oo
fin

g 
or

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

.
8.

 A
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t s
ho

ul
d

 fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 d

ra
w

in
g 

pa
ck

ag
e,

 if
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

no
t r

ec
ei

ve
d

 th
is

fro
m

 u
s b

y 
po

st
, e

m
ai

l o
r c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
pl

ea
se

 c
on

ta
ct

 u
s f

or
 a

 c
op

y 
be

fo
re

 m
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

9.
 W

e 
ta

ke
 n

o 
re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
fo

r t
he

 d
ep

ic
te

d
 si

te
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
bo

un
d

ar
y.

 C
lie

nt
s m

us
t n

ot
ify

 u
s i

f t
he

y 
fe

el
 th

e
ou

r p
la

ns
 d

o 
no

t a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

d
ep

ic
t t

he
ir 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
or

 a
re

a 
of

 c
on

tro
l f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

.
10

. W
e 

d
o 

no
t t

ak
e 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

fo
r m

ee
tin

g 
m

in
im

um
 sp

ac
e 

as
 se

to
ut

 in
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t T
ec

hn
ic

al
 h

ou
sin

g
st

an
d

ar
d

s -
 n

at
io

na
lly

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 sp

ac
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
s d

oc
um

en
t.

11
. A

ll C
la

d
d

in
g 

&
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

at
ta

ch
m

en
ts

 e
xt

er
na

lly
 to

 b
e 

al
l A

1 
fir

e 
ra

te
d

.
FI

RE
: W

e 
d

o 
N

O
T 

ta
ke

 a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

an
d

 d
o 

no
t c

ar
ry

 a
ny

 P
I c

ov
er

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 a
ny

 m
at

te
rs

 re
la

tin
g 

to
fir

e 
sa

fe
ty

, P
ar

t B
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, B

S 
99

91
 fo

r f
ire

 o
r E

W
S1

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 n
o 

w
ay

 fo
rm

 a
 fi

re
 st

ra
te

gy
/

re
po

rt.
 A

ll d
es

ig
n/

 d
et

ai
ls 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r i

nd
ic

at
iv

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

nl
y 

an
d

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ad
 in

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
te

st
 v

er
sio

n 
of

 th
e 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 F

ire
 C

on
su

lta
nt

 F
ire

 S
tra

te
gy

 D
oc

um
en

t/
 R

ep
or

t -
 a

ll
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d

 in
 su

ch
 a

 re
po

rt 
su

pe
rs

ed
es

 A
RC

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 a
ll a

sp
ec

ts
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

is 
ac

ce
pt

ed
. I

f y
ou

 a
re

 u
na

w
ar

e 
w

ho
 th

e 
ap

po
in

te
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 is

 o
r d

on
't 

ha
ve

 a
 c

op
y 

of
th

e 
la

te
st

 v
er

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
re

po
rt 

pl
ea

se
 c

on
ta

ct
 a

rc
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.
EW

S1
: a

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 q

ua
lif

ie
d

 a
nd

 in
su

re
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
/e

ng
in

ee
r s

ho
ul

d
 b

e
ap

po
in

te
d

 b
y 

th
e 

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
fin

ish
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

. S
om

e 
m

or
tg

ag
e 

co
m

pa
ni

es
re

qu
ire

 E
W

S1
's 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
ut

sid
e 

of
 th

e 
EW

S1
 st

an
d

ar
d

 c
rit

er
ia

.
Pa

rt 
B 

&
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y:
 A

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d
 fi

re
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 a
t t

he
 e

ar
lie

st
 p

os
sib

le
 p

oi
nt

 in
 th

e 
d

es
ig

n 
pr

oc
es

s t
o 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t B

 &
 F

ire
sa

fe
ty

. P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

fir
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s c

on
fir

m
at

io
n/

in
pu

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

in
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d

in
 so

m
e 

or
 a

ll a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g;
 1

) S
pr

in
kl

er
 sy

st
em

s 2
) M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l s
m

ok
e 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
 3

) F
ixe

d
 sh

ut
 fi

re
sa

fe
ty

 g
la

ss
 4

) p
la

n 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 fi

re
 sa

fe
ty

 c
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 lo

ss
 o

f s
al

ab
le

 fl
oo

r a
re

a 
an

d
 p

ot
en

tia
l

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 a

d
d

iti
on

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. (
th

is 
lis

t i
s n

ot
 e

xh
au

st
iv

e)

re
v-

08
-1

0-
21

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 73



1
0

m
 @

 1
:1

0
0

ES
BA

TH

BE
D

 2

BE
D

 1

LI
V

IN
G

 

ST

BE
D

 3

D
IN

IN
G

KI
TC

HE
N

UT
IL

ITY

2

93
77

/5
02

A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 @
 A

1

M
A

RC
H 

20
22

Re
vi

sio
n.

N
o.

by
d

at
e

d
at

e

sc
al

e

d
ra

w
n

ch
ec

ke
d

G
R

PL
A

N
S 

&
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
S

PL
O

T 
2

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

W
IL

LI
A

M
S 

G
A

RA
G

E,
SA

LI
SB

UR
Y 

RO
A

D
,

A
N

D
O

V
ER

,
SP

11
 7

N
S.

PL
O

T 
2 

- 3
 B

ED
RO

O
M

 B
UN

G
A

LO
W

 @
 1

02
 S

Q
.M

 /
 1

09
7 

SQ
.F

T

A
R

C
 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
u

r
e

 
l
t
d

.

C
h
a

p
e
l
 
S

t
u
d
i
o

s
,
 
1
4

 
P

u
r
e

w
e

l
l
,

T
e

l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
+

4
4

 
(
0

 
)
1

2
0

2
 
4

7
9

9
1

9

C
h
r
i
s
t
c
h

u
r
c
h
,
 
D

o
r
s
e
t
,
 
B

H
2

3
 
1

E
P

E
-
m

a
i
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
n
q
u
i
r
i
e
s
@

a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

W
e
b
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
w

w
w

.
a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

M
A

TE
RI

A
LS

 S
C

HE
DU

LE
:

SL
A

TE
 E

FF
EC

T 
TIL

ES
RO

O
F:

-

.T
BC

W
IN

D
O

W
S 

&
 D

O
O

RS
:-

.R
ED

 B
RI

C
K

EX
TE

RN
A

L 
W

A
LL

S:
-

N
ot

e:
 A

ll 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 b

y 
fir

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 p
rio

r t
o 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n.

 T
he

ab
ov

e 
m

at
er

ia
l c

ho
ic

es
 a

re
 fo

r p
la

nn
in

g/
ae

st
he

tic
 p

ur
po

se
s o

nl
y 

an
d 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n

of
 fi

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 sh

ou
ld

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 sp
ec

ia
lis

t. 
(fi

xi
ng

 sy
st

em
 b

eh
in

d 
cl

ad
di

ng
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 n
on

 c
om

bu
st

ib
le

 A
1 

or
 A

2 
ra

te
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 fi

re
 c

on
su

lta
nt

)

N
ot

e:
 A

ny
 d

es
ig

n 
or

 d
et

ai
ls

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
de

r P
ar

t B
 o

f t
he

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 is

 sh
ow

n 
fo

r i
nd

ic
at

iv
e/

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y 
an

d 
is

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l i
np

ut
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 a
cc

ep
te

d.

SO
UT

H 
EA

ST
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

N
O

RT
H 

EA
ST

 E
LE

V
A

TIO
N

1:
10

0
N

O
RT

H 
W

ES
T 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

SO
UT

H 
W

ES
T 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

PL
A

N
1:

50
RO

O
F 

PL
A

N
1:

50

N
O

TE
S-

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
1.

 T
he

 c
on

te
nt

s o
f t

hi
s d

ra
w

in
g 

ar
e 

co
py

rig
ht

.
2.

 P
la

nn
in

g 
d

ra
w

in
gs

 a
re

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

 &
 n

o 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 B
ui

ld
in

g
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
as

su
m

ed
.

3.
 D

o 
no

t s
ca

le
. F

ig
ur

ed
 d

im
en

sio
ns

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

.  
   

4.
 C

on
tra

ct
or

s m
us

t v
er

ify
 a

ll d
im

en
sio

ns
 a

nd
 re

po
rt 

an
y 

d
isc

re
pa

nc
ie

s b
ef

or
e 

pu
tti

ng
 w

or
k 

in
 h

an
d

 o
r

 m
ak

in
g 

an
y 

sh
op

 d
ra

w
in

gs
.

5.
 A

ll f
la

t r
oo

fs
 to

 b
e 

fit
te

d
 w

ith
 a

 m
an

 sa
fe

 sy
st

em
 to

 sa
tis

fy
 C

D
M

 2
01

5 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 u
nl

es
s w

rit
te

n
 c

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

fro
m

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
D

es
ig

ne
r/

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 is
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 to
 sh

ow
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

so
ug

ht
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

.
6.

 S
ta

ir 
d

es
ig

n 
to

 b
e 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

tly
 c

he
ck

ed
 b

y 
st

ai
r f

ab
ric

at
or

 fo
r r

eg
s. 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d

 si
zin

g,
 p

rio
r t

o
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n/

 o
rd

er
in

g.
 D

im
en

sio
ns

 to
 b

e 
ch

ec
ke

d
 b

ef
or

e 
fa

br
ic

at
io

n.
7.

 M
ac

le
nn

an
 w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 (o

r s
im

ila
r c

om
pa

ny
 w

ith
 re

le
va

nt
 P

I i
ns

ur
an

ce
) t

o 
be

 in
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

nd
d

et
ai

l a
ll b

as
em

en
t w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

d
es

ig
ns

. -
 A

RC
 c

ar
ry

 n
o 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

or
 P

I c
ov

er
 fo

r b
as

em
en

t d
es

ig
ns

 in
te

rm
s o

f w
at

er
pr

oo
fin

g 
or

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

.
8.

 A
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t s
ho

ul
d

 fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 d

ra
w

in
g 

pa
ck

ag
e,

 if
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

no
t r

ec
ei

ve
d

 th
is

fro
m

 u
s b

y 
po

st
, e

m
ai

l o
r c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
pl

ea
se

 c
on

ta
ct

 u
s f

or
 a

 c
op

y 
be

fo
re

 m
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

9.
 W

e 
ta

ke
 n

o 
re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
fo

r t
he

 d
ep

ic
te

d
 si

te
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
bo

un
d

ar
y.

 C
lie

nt
s m

us
t n

ot
ify

 u
s i

f t
he

y 
fe

el
 th

e
ou

r p
la

ns
 d

o 
no

t a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

d
ep

ic
t t

he
ir 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
or

 a
re

a 
of

 c
on

tro
l f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

.
10

. W
e 

d
o 

no
t t

ak
e 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

fo
r m

ee
tin

g 
m

in
im

um
 sp

ac
e 

as
 se

to
ut

 in
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t T
ec

hn
ic

al
 h

ou
sin

g
st

an
d

ar
d

s -
 n

at
io

na
lly

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 sp

ac
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
s d

oc
um

en
t.

11
. A

ll C
la

d
d

in
g 

&
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

at
ta

ch
m

en
ts

 e
xt

er
na

lly
 to

 b
e 

al
l A

1 
fir

e 
ra

te
d

.
FI

RE
: W

e 
d

o 
N

O
T 

ta
ke

 a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

an
d

 d
o 

no
t c

ar
ry

 a
ny

 P
I c

ov
er

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 a
ny

 m
at

te
rs

 re
la

tin
g 

to
fir

e 
sa

fe
ty

, P
ar

t B
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, B

S 
99

91
 fo

r f
ire

 o
r E

W
S1

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 n
o 

w
ay

 fo
rm

 a
 fi

re
 st

ra
te

gy
/

re
po

rt.
 A

ll d
es

ig
n/

 d
et

ai
ls 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r i

nd
ic

at
iv

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

nl
y 

an
d

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ad
 in

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
te

st
 v

er
sio

n 
of

 th
e 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 F

ire
 C

on
su

lta
nt

 F
ire

 S
tra

te
gy

 D
oc

um
en

t/
 R

ep
or

t -
 a

ll
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d

 in
 su

ch
 a

 re
po

rt 
su

pe
rs

ed
es

 A
RC

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 a
ll a

sp
ec

ts
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

is 
ac

ce
pt

ed
. I

f y
ou

 a
re

 u
na

w
ar

e 
w

ho
 th

e 
ap

po
in

te
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 is

 o
r d

on
't 

ha
ve

 a
 c

op
y 

of
th

e 
la

te
st

 v
er

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
re

po
rt 

pl
ea

se
 c

on
ta

ct
 a

rc
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.
EW

S1
: a

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 q

ua
lif

ie
d

 a
nd

 in
su

re
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
/e

ng
in

ee
r s

ho
ul

d
 b

e
ap

po
in

te
d

 b
y 

th
e 

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
fin

ish
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

. S
om

e 
m

or
tg

ag
e 

co
m

pa
ni

es
re

qu
ire

 E
W

S1
's 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
ut

sid
e 

of
 th

e 
EW

S1
 st

an
d

ar
d

 c
rit

er
ia

.
Pa

rt 
B 

&
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y:
 A

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d
 fi

re
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 a
t t

he
 e

ar
lie

st
 p

os
sib

le
 p

oi
nt

 in
 th

e 
d

es
ig

n 
pr

oc
es

s t
o 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t B

 &
 F

ire
sa

fe
ty

. P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

fir
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s c

on
fir

m
at

io
n/

in
pu

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

in
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d

in
 so

m
e 

or
 a

ll a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g;
 1

) S
pr

in
kl

er
 sy

st
em

s 2
) M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l s
m

ok
e 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
 3

) F
ixe

d
 sh

ut
 fi

re
sa

fe
ty

 g
la

ss
 4

) p
la

n 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 fi

re
 sa

fe
ty

 c
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 lo

ss
 o

f s
al

ab
le

 fl
oo

r a
re

a 
an

d
 p

ot
en

tia
l

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 a

d
d

iti
on

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. (
th

is 
lis

t i
s n

ot
 e

xh
au

st
iv

e)

re
v-

08
-1

0-
21

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 74



1
0

m
 @

 1
:1

0
0

ES
BA

TH

BE
D

 2

BE
D

 1

LI
V

IN
G

 

ST

BE
D

 3

D
IN

IN
G

KI
TC

HE
N

UT
IL

ITY

3

93
77

/5
03

A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 @
 A

1

M
A

RC
H 

20
22

Re
vi

sio
n.

N
o.

by
d

at
e

d
at

e

sc
al

e

d
ra

w
n

ch
ec

ke
d

G
R

PL
A

N
S 

&
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
S

PL
O

T 
3

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

W
IL

LI
A

M
S 

G
A

RA
G

E,
SA

LI
SB

UR
Y 

RO
A

D
,

A
N

D
O

V
ER

,
SP

11
 7

N
S.

PL
O

T 
3 

- 3
 B

ED
RO

O
M

 B
UN

G
A

LO
W

 @
 1

02
 S

Q
.M

 /
 1

09
7 

SQ
.F

T

A
R

C
 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
u

r
e

 
l
t
d

.

C
h
a

p
e
l
 
S

t
u
d
i
o

s
,
 
1
4

 
P

u
r
e

w
e

l
l
,

T
e

l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
+

4
4

 
(
0

 
)
1

2
0

2
 
4

7
9

9
1

9

C
h
r
i
s
t
c
h

u
r
c
h
,
 
D

o
r
s
e
t
,
 
B

H
2

3
 
1

E
P

E
-
m

a
i
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
n
q
u
i
r
i
e
s
@

a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

W
e
b
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
w

w
w

.
a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

M
A

TE
RI

A
LS

 S
C

HE
DU

LE
:

C
LA

Y 
EF

FE
C

T 
TIL

ES
RO

O
F:

-

.T
BC

W
IN

D
O

W
S 

&
 D

O
O

RS
:-

.R
ED

 B
RI

C
K 

/ 
TIL

E 
HA

N
G

IN
G

EX
TE

RN
A

L 
W

A
LL

S:
-

N
ot

e:
 A

ll 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 b

y 
fir

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 p
rio

r t
o 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n.

 T
he

ab
ov

e 
m

at
er

ia
l c

ho
ic

es
 a

re
 fo

r p
la

nn
in

g/
ae

st
he

tic
 p

ur
po

se
s o

nl
y 

an
d 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n

of
 fi

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 sh

ou
ld

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 sp
ec

ia
lis

t. 
(fi

xi
ng

 sy
st

em
 b

eh
in

d 
cl

ad
di

ng
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 n
on

 c
om

bu
st

ib
le

 A
1 

or
 A

2 
ra

te
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 fi

re
 c

on
su

lta
nt

)

N
ot

e:
 A

ny
 d

es
ig

n 
or

 d
et

ai
ls

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
de

r P
ar

t B
 o

f t
he

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 is

 sh
ow

n 
fo

r i
nd

ic
at

iv
e/

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y 
an

d 
is

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l i
np

ut
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 a
cc

ep
te

d.

SO
UT

H 
EA

ST
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

N
O

RT
H 

EA
ST

 E
LE

V
A

TIO
N

1:
10

0
N

O
RT

H 
W

ES
T 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

SO
UT

H 
W

ES
T 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

N
O

TE
S-

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
1.

 T
he

 c
on

te
nt

s o
f t

hi
s d

ra
w

in
g 

ar
e 

co
py

rig
ht

.
2.

 P
la

nn
in

g 
d

ra
w

in
gs

 a
re

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

 &
 n

o 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 B
ui

ld
in

g
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
as

su
m

ed
.

3.
 D

o 
no

t s
ca

le
. F

ig
ur

ed
 d

im
en

sio
ns

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

.  
   

4.
 C

on
tra

ct
or

s m
us

t v
er

ify
 a

ll d
im

en
sio

ns
 a

nd
 re

po
rt 

an
y 

d
isc

re
pa

nc
ie

s b
ef

or
e 

pu
tti

ng
 w

or
k 

in
 h

an
d

 o
r

 m
ak

in
g 

an
y 

sh
op

 d
ra

w
in

gs
.

5.
 A

ll f
la

t r
oo

fs
 to

 b
e 

fit
te

d
 w

ith
 a

 m
an

 sa
fe

 sy
st

em
 to

 sa
tis

fy
 C

D
M

 2
01

5 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 u
nl

es
s w

rit
te

n
 c

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

fro
m

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
D

es
ig

ne
r/

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 is
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 to
 sh

ow
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

so
ug

ht
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

.
6.

 S
ta

ir 
d

es
ig

n 
to

 b
e 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

tly
 c

he
ck

ed
 b

y 
st

ai
r f

ab
ric

at
or

 fo
r r

eg
s. 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d

 si
zin

g,
 p

rio
r t

o
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n/

 o
rd

er
in

g.
 D

im
en

sio
ns

 to
 b

e 
ch

ec
ke

d
 b

ef
or

e 
fa

br
ic

at
io

n.
7.

 M
ac

le
nn

an
 w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 (o

r s
im

ila
r c

om
pa

ny
 w

ith
 re

le
va

nt
 P

I i
ns

ur
an

ce
) t

o 
be

 in
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

nd
d

et
ai

l a
ll b

as
em

en
t w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

d
es

ig
ns

. -
 A

RC
 c

ar
ry

 n
o 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

or
 P

I c
ov

er
 fo

r b
as

em
en

t d
es

ig
ns

 in
te

rm
s o

f w
at

er
pr

oo
fin

g 
or

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

.
8.

 A
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t s
ho

ul
d

 fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 d

ra
w

in
g 

pa
ck

ag
e,

 if
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

no
t r

ec
ei

ve
d

 th
is

fro
m

 u
s b

y 
po

st
, e

m
ai

l o
r c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
pl

ea
se

 c
on

ta
ct

 u
s f

or
 a

 c
op

y 
be

fo
re

 m
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

9.
 W

e 
ta

ke
 n

o 
re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
fo

r t
he

 d
ep

ic
te

d
 si

te
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
bo

un
d

ar
y.

 C
lie

nt
s m

us
t n

ot
ify

 u
s i

f t
he

y 
fe

el
 th

e
ou

r p
la

ns
 d

o 
no

t a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

d
ep

ic
t t

he
ir 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
or

 a
re

a 
of

 c
on

tro
l f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

.
10

. W
e 

d
o 

no
t t

ak
e 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

fo
r m

ee
tin

g 
m

in
im

um
 sp

ac
e 

as
 se

to
ut

 in
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t T
ec

hn
ic

al
 h

ou
sin

g
st

an
d

ar
d

s -
 n

at
io

na
lly

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 sp

ac
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
s d

oc
um

en
t.

11
. A

ll C
la

d
d

in
g 

&
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

at
ta

ch
m

en
ts

 e
xt

er
na

lly
 to

 b
e 

al
l A

1 
fir

e 
ra

te
d

.
FI

RE
: W

e 
d

o 
N

O
T 

ta
ke

 a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

an
d

 d
o 

no
t c

ar
ry

 a
ny

 P
I c

ov
er

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 a
ny

 m
at

te
rs

 re
la

tin
g 

to
fir

e 
sa

fe
ty

, P
ar

t B
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, B

S 
99

91
 fo

r f
ire

 o
r E

W
S1

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 n
o 

w
ay

 fo
rm

 a
 fi

re
 st

ra
te

gy
/

re
po

rt.
 A

ll d
es

ig
n/

 d
et

ai
ls 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r i

nd
ic

at
iv

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

nl
y 

an
d

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ad
 in

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
te

st
 v

er
sio

n 
of

 th
e 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 F

ire
 C

on
su

lta
nt

 F
ire

 S
tra

te
gy

 D
oc

um
en

t/
 R

ep
or

t -
 a

ll
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d

 in
 su

ch
 a

 re
po

rt 
su

pe
rs

ed
es

 A
RC

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 a
ll a

sp
ec

ts
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

is 
ac

ce
pt

ed
. I

f y
ou

 a
re

 u
na

w
ar

e 
w

ho
 th

e 
ap

po
in

te
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 is

 o
r d

on
't 

ha
ve

 a
 c

op
y 

of
th

e 
la

te
st

 v
er

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
re

po
rt 

pl
ea

se
 c

on
ta

ct
 a

rc
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.
EW

S1
: a

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 q

ua
lif

ie
d

 a
nd

 in
su

re
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
/e

ng
in

ee
r s

ho
ul

d
 b

e
ap

po
in

te
d

 b
y 

th
e 

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
fin

ish
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

. S
om

e 
m

or
tg

ag
e 

co
m

pa
ni

es
re

qu
ire

 E
W

S1
's 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
ut

sid
e 

of
 th

e 
EW

S1
 st

an
d

ar
d

 c
rit

er
ia

.
Pa

rt 
B 

&
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y:
 A

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d
 fi

re
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 a
t t

he
 e

ar
lie

st
 p

os
sib

le
 p

oi
nt

 in
 th

e 
d

es
ig

n 
pr

oc
es

s t
o 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t B

 &
 F

ire
sa

fe
ty

. P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

fir
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s c

on
fir

m
at

io
n/

in
pu

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

in
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d

in
 so

m
e 

or
 a

ll a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g;
 1

) S
pr

in
kl

er
 sy

st
em

s 2
) M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l s
m

ok
e 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
 3

) F
ixe

d
 sh

ut
 fi

re
sa

fe
ty

 g
la

ss
 4

) p
la

n 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 fi

re
 sa

fe
ty

 c
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 lo

ss
 o

f s
al

ab
le

 fl
oo

r a
re

a 
an

d
 p

ot
en

tia
l

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 a

d
d

iti
on

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. (
th

is 
lis

t i
s n

ot
 e

xh
au

st
iv

e)

re
v-

08
-1

0-
21

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

PL
A

N
1:

50
RO

O
F 

PL
A

N
1:

50

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 75



1
0

m
 @

 1
:1

0
0

ST

LI
V

IN
G

 

ES

BE
D

 2
BE

D
 1

BA
THKI

TC
HE

N

D
IN

IN
G

ST

LI
V

IN
G

 

ES

BE
D

 2
BE

D
 1

BA
TH

KI
TC

HE
N

D
IN

IN
G

4
5

93
77

/5
04

A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 @
 A

1

M
A

RC
H 

20
22

Re
vi

sio
n.

N
o.

by
d

at
e

d
at

e

sc
al

e

d
ra

w
n

ch
ec

ke
d

G
R

PL
A

N
S 

&
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
S

PL
O

TS
 4

 &
 5

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

W
IL

LI
A

M
S 

G
A

RA
G

E,
SA

LI
SB

UR
Y 

RO
A

D
,

A
N

D
O

V
ER

,
SP

11
 7

N
S.

A
R

C
 
A

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
u

r
e

 
l
t
d

.

C
h
a

p
e
l
 
S

t
u
d
i
o

s
,
 
1
4

 
P

u
r
e

w
e

l
l
,

T
e

l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
+

4
4

 
(
0

 
)
1

2
0

2
 
4

7
9

9
1

9

C
h
r
i
s
t
c
h

u
r
c
h
,
 
D

o
r
s
e
t
,
 
B

H
2

3
 
1

E
P

E
-
m

a
i
l
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
e
n
q
u
i
r
i
e
s
@

a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

W
e
b
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
w

w
w

.
a
n
d
e
r
s
r
o
b
e
r
t
s
c
h
e
e
r
.
c
o
.
u
k

M
A

TE
RI

A
LS

 S
C

HE
DU

LE
:

SL
A

TE
 E

FF
EC

T 
TIL

ES
RO

O
F:

-

.T
BC

W
IN

D
O

W
S 

&
 D

O
O

RS
:-

.R
ED

 B
RI

C
K

EX
TE

RN
A

L 
W

A
LL

S:
-

N
ot

e:
 A

ll 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 b

y 
fir

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 p
rio

r t
o 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n.

 T
he

ab
ov

e 
m

at
er

ia
l c

ho
ic

es
 a

re
 fo

r p
la

nn
in

g/
ae

st
he

tic
 p

ur
po

se
s o

nl
y 

an
d 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n

of
 fi

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 sh

ou
ld

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ith

 sp
ec

ia
lis

t. 
(fi

xi
ng

 sy
st

em
 b

eh
in

d 
cl

ad
di

ng
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 n
on

 c
om

bu
st

ib
le

 A
1 

or
 A

2 
ra

te
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 fi

re
 c

on
su

lta
nt

)

N
ot

e:
 A

ny
 d

es
ig

n 
or

 d
et

ai
ls

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

un
de

r P
ar

t B
 o

f t
he

Bu
ild

in
g 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 is

 sh
ow

n 
fo

r i
nd

ic
at

iv
e/

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y 
an

d 
is

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 e
xt

er
na

l p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l i
np

ut
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 a
cc

ep
te

d.

SO
UT

H 
EA

ST
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
1:

10
0

N
O

RT
H 

EA
ST

 E
LE

V
A

TIO
N

1:
10

0

N
O

RT
H 

W
ES

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

1:
10

0
SO

UT
H 

W
ES

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

1:
10

0

N
O

TE
S-

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 
1.

 T
he

 c
on

te
nt

s o
f t

hi
s d

ra
w

in
g 

ar
e 

co
py

rig
ht

.
2.

 P
la

nn
in

g 
d

ra
w

in
gs

 a
re

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

 &
 n

o 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 B
ui

ld
in

g
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
as

su
m

ed
.

3.
 D

o 
no

t s
ca

le
. F

ig
ur

ed
 d

im
en

sio
ns

 o
nl

y 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

.  
   

4.
 C

on
tra

ct
or

s m
us

t v
er

ify
 a

ll d
im

en
sio

ns
 a

nd
 re

po
rt 

an
y 

d
isc

re
pa

nc
ie

s b
ef

or
e 

pu
tti

ng
 w

or
k 

in
 h

an
d

 o
r

 m
ak

in
g 

an
y 

sh
op

 d
ra

w
in

gs
.

5.
 A

ll f
la

t r
oo

fs
 to

 b
e 

fit
te

d
 w

ith
 a

 m
an

 sa
fe

 sy
st

em
 to

 sa
tis

fy
 C

D
M

 2
01

5 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 u
nl

es
s w

rit
te

n
 c

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

fro
m

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
D

es
ig

ne
r/

 P
rin

ci
pl

e 
C

on
tra

ct
or

 is
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 to
 sh

ow
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

so
ug

ht
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

.
6.

 S
ta

ir 
d

es
ig

n 
to

 b
e 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

tly
 c

he
ck

ed
 b

y 
st

ai
r f

ab
ric

at
or

 fo
r r

eg
s. 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d

 si
zin

g,
 p

rio
r t

o
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n/

 o
rd

er
in

g.
 D

im
en

sio
ns

 to
 b

e 
ch

ec
ke

d
 b

ef
or

e 
fa

br
ic

at
io

n.
7.

 M
ac

le
nn

an
 w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 (o

r s
im

ila
r c

om
pa

ny
 w

ith
 re

le
va

nt
 P

I i
ns

ur
an

ce
) t

o 
be

 in
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

nd
d

et
ai

l a
ll b

as
em

en
t w

at
er

pr
oo

fin
g 

d
es

ig
ns

. -
 A

RC
 c

ar
ry

 n
o 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

or
 P

I c
ov

er
 fo

r b
as

em
en

t d
es

ig
ns

 in
te

rm
s o

f w
at

er
pr

oo
fin

g 
or

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

.
8.

 A
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t s
ho

ul
d

 fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 d

ra
w

in
g 

pa
ck

ag
e,

 if
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

no
t r

ec
ei

ve
d

 th
is

fro
m

 u
s b

y 
po

st
, e

m
ai

l o
r c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
pl

ea
se

 c
on

ta
ct

 u
s f

or
 a

 c
op

y 
be

fo
re

 m
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

9.
 W

e 
ta

ke
 n

o 
re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y 
fo

r t
he

 d
ep

ic
te

d
 si

te
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
bo

un
d

ar
y.

 C
lie

nt
s m

us
t n

ot
ify

 u
s i

f t
he

y 
fe

el
 th

e
ou

r p
la

ns
 d

o 
no

t a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

d
ep

ic
t t

he
ir 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
or

 a
re

a 
of

 c
on

tro
l f

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pu
rp

os
es

.
10

. W
e 

d
o 

no
t t

ak
e 

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

fo
r m

ee
tin

g 
m

in
im

um
 sp

ac
e 

as
 se

to
ut

 in
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t T
ec

hn
ic

al
 h

ou
sin

g
st

an
d

ar
d

s -
 n

at
io

na
lly

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 sp

ac
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
s d

oc
um

en
t.

11
. A

ll C
la

d
d

in
g 

&
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

at
ta

ch
m

en
ts

 e
xt

er
na

lly
 to

 b
e 

al
l A

1 
fir

e 
ra

te
d

.
FI

RE
: W

e 
d

o 
N

O
T 

ta
ke

 a
ny

 re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

an
d

 d
o 

no
t c

ar
ry

 a
ny

 P
I c

ov
er

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 a
ny

 m
at

te
rs

 re
la

tin
g 

to
fir

e 
sa

fe
ty

, P
ar

t B
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, B

S 
99

91
 fo

r f
ire

 o
r E

W
S1

 a
nd

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 n
o 

w
ay

 fo
rm

 a
 fi

re
 st

ra
te

gy
/

re
po

rt.
 A

ll d
es

ig
n/

 d
et

ai
ls 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r i

nd
ic

at
iv

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

nl
y 

an
d

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ad
 in

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

la
te

st
 v

er
sio

n 
of

 th
e 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 F

ire
 C

on
su

lta
nt

 F
ire

 S
tra

te
gy

 D
oc

um
en

t/
 R

ep
or

t -
 a

ll
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d

 in
 su

ch
 a

 re
po

rt 
su

pe
rs

ed
es

 A
RC

 d
ra

w
in

gs
 in

 a
ll a

sp
ec

ts
. N

o 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 a
ny

re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

is 
ac

ce
pt

ed
. I

f y
ou

 a
re

 u
na

w
ar

e 
w

ho
 th

e 
ap

po
in

te
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 is

 o
r d

on
't 

ha
ve

 a
 c

op
y 

of
th

e 
la

te
st

 v
er

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
re

po
rt 

pl
ea

se
 c

on
ta

ct
 a

rc
 in

 w
rit

in
g 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.
EW

S1
: a

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 q

ua
lif

ie
d

 a
nd

 in
su

re
d

 fi
re

 c
on

su
lta

nt
/e

ng
in

ee
r s

ho
ul

d
 b

e
ap

po
in

te
d

 b
y 

th
e 

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
fin

ish
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 is
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

. S
om

e 
m

or
tg

ag
e 

co
m

pa
ni

es
re

qu
ire

 E
W

S1
's 

on
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
ut

sid
e 

of
 th

e 
EW

S1
 st

an
d

ar
d

 c
rit

er
ia

.
Pa

rt 
B 

&
 F

ire
 S

af
et

y:
 A

n 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d
 fi

re
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e

cl
ie

nt
/c

on
tra

ct
or

 a
t t

he
 e

ar
lie

st
 p

os
sib

le
 p

oi
nt

 in
 th

e 
d

es
ig

n 
pr

oc
es

s t
o 

en
su

re
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t B

 &
 F

ire
sa

fe
ty

. P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

fir
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s c

on
fir

m
at

io
n/

in
pu

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

in
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d

in
 so

m
e 

or
 a

ll a
re

as
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g;
 1

) S
pr

in
kl

er
 sy

st
em

s 2
) M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l s
m

ok
e 

ex
tra

ct
io

n 
 3

) F
ixe

d
 sh

ut
 fi

re
sa

fe
ty

 g
la

ss
 4

) p
la

n 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 fi

re
 sa

fe
ty

 c
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 lo

ss
 o

f s
al

ab
le

 fl
oo

r a
re

a 
an

d
 p

ot
en

tia
l

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 a

d
d

iti
on

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. (
th

is 
lis

t i
s n

ot
 e

xh
au

st
iv

e)

re
v-

08
-1

0-
21

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

PL
A

N
1:

10
0

RO
O

F 
PL

A
N

1:
10

0

PL
O

T 
4 

- 2
 B

ED
RO

O
M

 B
UN

G
A

LO
W

 @
 7

5.
9 

SQ
.M

 /
 8

16
 S

Q
.F

T

PL
O

T 
5 

- 2
 B

ED
RO

O
M

 B
UN

G
A

LO
W

 @
 7

5.
9 

SQ
.M

 /
 8

16
 S

Q
.F

T

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 76



 
 
 

 
 APPLICATION NO. 22/01147/FULLN 
 APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - NORTH 
 REGISTERED 26.04.2022 
 APPLICANT Mr Allan Shipway 
 SITE Land North East of Homelea, Andover Road,  

ABBOTTS ANN / MONXTON  
 PROPOSAL Erection of a general purpose agricultural building to 

replace two existing end of life buildings 
 AMENDMENTS  
 CASE OFFICER Lucy Bensaid 
  

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D) 
Click her to view application  

 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION  
1.1 The application is presented to Northern Area Planning Committee due to staff 

interest. 
 

2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION 
2.1 Land North East of Homelea is a small holding located within the village of 

Monxton along Andover Road, Red Post Bridge. The site is 2.8 hectares in 
size and contains 9 agricultural buildings on site including a paddock. The site 
is a working farm with the rearing of calves, beef production, agricultural 
contracting and a livery. Mature hedging screens the site from Andover Road 
to the east and west of the site. 
 

3.0 THE PROPOSAL 
3.1 The proposal seeks permission for the installation of a new agricultural barn 

measuring 296 square metres to replace two agricultural barns measuring a 
total of 99 square metres on the site which have come to the end of their viable 
life. The proposed barn would be used for improved accommodation for 
calves, a workshop and as under cover storage for farm vehicles such as 
tractors. 
 

3.2 The proposed barn would measure 24.3 metres in width, 12.2 metres in depth 
and 5.9 metres in height.  It would be located in the centre of the site close to 
other existing buildings within the farm complex. The barn would incorporate 
pre-cast concrete for the lower wall and wooden Yorkshire boarding for the 
upper walls with green cladding and a natural grey fibre cement roof. 
 

3.3 It should be noted that one of the barns was damaged in a storm prior to the 
submission of the application and as a result is no longer present on the site. 

 
4.0 HISTORY 
4.1 None relevant. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 77

ITEM 10

https://view-applications.testvalley.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=makeComment&keyVal=RAXPX0QCFYA00


 
5.0 CONSULTATIONS 
5.1 Ecology – No objection 

No reasonable likelihood that bats would be present and affected and raise no 
specific concerns over the removal of this. Therefore the application does not 
require an ecological survey to be submitted.  

 
6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 20.05.2022 
6.1 Monxton Parish Council: No objection. 

 
6.2 Abbotts Ann Parish Council: No objection 
 
7.0 POLICY 
7.1 Government Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 

 
7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(TVBRLP) 

Policy SD1 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy COM2 – Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy E1- High Quality Development in the Borough 

Policy E5 - Biodiversity 

 
7.3 Supplementary Planning Document 

Monxton Village Design Statement 2004 
 
8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
8.1 The main planning considerations are: 

 Principle of development 

 Impact on the character and appearance of the area 

 Impact on ecology 
 

8.2 Principle of development 
The site lies within the countryside as defined on the Inset Maps of the 
TVBRLP. In accordance with Policy COM2 of the TVBRLP development is 
permissible outside of the settlement boundary provided that it is essential for 
the proposal to be located in the countryside. The proposed agricultural barn is 
essential in this location to serve a working farm. The size of the building is  
considered reasonably necessary for its purpose of calve rearing and 
equipment storage and the function is what is reasonably required for 
agricultural operations and therefore is compliant with COM2 of the TVBRLP.  
 

8.3 Character of the area 
 The character of the area comprises of working agricultural fields and open 

countryside. The proposed barn would retain the character of the area through 
its proximity to other agricultural structures on the site and its built form through 
the use of green cladding and boarding materials which are commonly seen 
within working farms in this part of the Borough.   
 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 78



8.4 The proposal would be located 50 metres from the public highway to the South 
and 245 metres away from the public footpath to the North West. As a result of 
hedgerow boundary treatment and mature planting public views from the South 
would be limited. The structure would be visible from the West of Andover 
Road due to reduced screening however this would be seen in the context of 
other buildings within the farm. 
 

8.5 The proposed development whilst a large agricultural barn is typical of modern 
agricultural buildings in scale and design. As a result the proposed 
development would be in keeping with the character with its agricultural 
surroundings. Therefore the proposal is compliant with Policy E1 of the 
TVBRLP. 
 

8.6 Impact on ecology 
Policy E5 of the RLP seeks to ensure that biodiversity is conserved, and where 
possible restored and enhanced. 
 

8.7 Following submission of evidence of the interior of the existing barn, due to the 
single skin structure the Council’s Ecologist is satisfied that this structure would 
not be suitable to support protected species i.e. bats. Therefore, the proposal 
is compliant with Policy E5 of the TVBRLP. 
 

8.8 Other Matters. 
 Due to the significant distance of the building between the neighbouring 

property of a minimum of 91 metres away the proposal does not impact the 
amenity of the neighbouring properties and is considered to be in compliance 
and policy LHW4 of the TVBRLP 
 

8.9 The proposal would not result in any changes to the parking arrangements 
within the site and therefore is compliant with policy T2 of the TVBRLP. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 
9.1 The proposal is considered acceptable and in accordance with the policies E1, 

LHW4. E5 and T2 of the TVBRLP. 
 
10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 PERMISSION subject to: 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 

years from the date of this permission. 
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 
in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers  
Block Plan received 26.04.2022 
Proposed Floor plan received 26.04.2022 
Proposed elevations received 26.04.2022 
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 79



 Notes to Applicant: 
 1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused 
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a 
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice 
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in 
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions. 

 2. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as 
amended). All work must stop immediately if bats, or evidence of 
bat presence (e.g. droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), are 
encountered at any point during this development. Should this 
occur, further advice should be sought from Natural England 
and/or a professional ecologist. 
 
 

 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 80



D
ef

Smallholdings

69.5m

0.
91

m
 R

H

E
D

 &
 W

ar
d
 B

d
y

ANDOVER ROAD

M
a
d

o
n
n

a

No 35

Def

D
e
f

D
e
f

Def

Def

0.91m RH

REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE SURVEY MAPPING

 WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF

 HER MAJESTY’S STATIONERY OFFICER © CROWN COPYRIGHT. 

UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT 

AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL LICENCE No. 100024295 2013

N
Siteplan

22/01147/FULLN

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 81



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 82



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 83



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 84



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 85



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 14 July 2022

Page 86


	Agenda
	6 Information Notes
	7 TPO.TVBC.1239 - 11.02.2022
	DSP_APPLICATION_TYPE
	TPO.TVBC.1239 NAPC Provisional Order
	TPO.TVBC.1239 NAPC Plan 1

	8 21/01749/FULLN - 09.06.2021
	REFERENCE
	DSP_APPLICATION_TYPE
	DATE_REGISTERED
	DSP_NAME
	DESCRIPTIVE_LOCATION
	PROPOSAL
	DSP_COF
	DATE_PUB_EXPIRY
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 1
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 2
	Sheets and Views
	OP-01


	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 3
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 4
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 5
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 6
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 7
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 8
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 9
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 10
	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 11
	Sheets and Views
	01 (2)


	21_01749_FULLN NAPC Plan 12

	9 22/00833/FULLN - 24.03.2022
	REFERENCE
	DSP_APPLICATION_TYPE
	DATE_REGISTERED
	DSP_NAME
	DESCRIPTIVE_LOCATION
	PROPOSAL
	DSP_COF
	DATE_PUB_EXPIRY
	22_00833_FULLN NAPC Plan 1
	22_00833_FULLN NAPC Plan 2
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN


	22_00833_FULLN NAPC Plan 3
	Sheets and Views
	PLOT 1


	22_00833_FULLN NAPC Plan 4
	Sheets and Views
	PLOT 2


	22_00833_FULLN NAPC Plan 5
	Sheets and Views
	PLOT 3


	22_00833_FULLN NAPC Plan 6
	Sheets and Views
	PLOTS 4 & 5



	10 22/01147/FULLN - 26.04.2022
	REFERENCE
	DSP_APPLICATION_TYPE
	DATE_REGISTERED
	DSP_NAME
	DESCRIPTIVE_LOCATION
	PROPOSAL
	DSP_COF
	22_01147_FULLN NAPC Plan 1
	22_01147_FULLN NAPC Plan 2
	22_01147_FULLN NAPC Plan 3
	22_01147_FULLN NAPC Plan 4
	22_01147_FULLN NAPC Plan 5
	22_01147_FULLN NAPC Plan 6




